K3MA Series Digital Panel Meter

USER MANUAL

OMRON

PREFACE

This User's Manual provides you with information necessary.

For use of the K3MA series of digital panel meters.

Please read this manual carefully to ensure correct and efficient use of the product.

Keep this manual handy for future reference.

GENERAL PRECAUTIONS

If contemplating using the product in the following environments or for the following equipment, first contact a sales representative of the company and then accept responsibility for incorporating into the design fail-safe operation, redundancy, and other appropriate measures for ensuring reliability and safety of the equipment and the overall system.

- (1) Environments deviating from those specified in this manual
- (2) Nuclear power control system, traffic (rail car/automobile/aircraft) control system, medical equipment, amusement equipment, and rescue and security equipment
- (3) Other equipment that demands high reliability, including those related to the safety of life and property

About the Content of the Manual

- (1) Any reproduction, full or in part, of the manual is prohibited without prior written permission from the company.
- (2) Descriptions in the manual may be subject to change without notice.
- (3) Information in the manual has been carefully checked for accuracy. If finding any suspicious or erroneous descriptions in the manual, however, you are kindly requested to contact a branch office of the company. In such a case, please let us know the Cat. No. shown on the front cover of the manual.

SAFETY PRECAUTIONS

Signal Words

In this manual, safety notices are divided into WARNING and CAUTION according to the hazard level.

As both of WARNING and CAUTION notices contain important information for ensuring safety, be sure to observe them.



Warnings



NOTICE

Observe the following precautions to ensure safety.

- (1) Maintain the power supply voltage within specifications.
- (2) Use the product within the rated load.
- (3) Be sure to check each terminal for correct number and polarity before connection. Incorrect or reverse connection may damage or burn out internal components of the product.
- Be sure to tighten the terminal screws. Recommended tightening torque: 0.43-0.58 N·m Loose screws may result in product failure or malfunction.
- (5) Do not connect anything to unused terminals.
- (6) Install a switch or a circuit breaker so that the operator can turn off the power supply without delay and attach an appropriate label.
- (7) Do not disassemble, repair, or modify the product.
- (8) Do not use the product in flammable or explosive atmosphere.

• For proper usage of the product:

- (1) Do not use the product in such an environment that is subject to the following:
 - Direct heat radiation from any heat source
 - Water flooding or oil splashes
 - Direct sunlight
 - Dust or corrosive gases (especially, sulfuric or ammonia gas)
 - Rapid temperature changes
 - Condensation or icing due to high humidity
 - Strong vibration or mechanical shock
- (2) Do not block heat dissipation from the product, i.e., allow sufficient space for heat dissipation.
- (3) Be sure that the rated voltage is reached within 2 seconds after the power is turned ON.
- (4) Conduct aging for at least 15 minutes after turning ON the power for correct measurement. (For K3MA-L: 30 minutes)
- (5) To prevent the effect of static electricity, do not touch live terminals or slit areas of the product.
- (6) Do not apply heavy load to the product. Doing so may deform or deteriorate the product.
- (7) Do not use paint thinner for cleaning. Use commercially available alcohol.

Installation and connection

- (1) Mount the product to a panel that is 1 to 8 mm thick.
- (2) Install the product in a horizontal position.
- (3) Use crimp-style terminals fit for the screw size.

Noise prevention

- (1) Install the product as far as possible from devices that generate strong high-frequency fields (such as high-frequency welders or sewing machines) or surges.
- (2) Attach surge absorbers or noise filters to nearby devices that generate noise (particularly, motors, transformers, solenoids, magnet coils, and other devices that have a high inductance component). However, in the case of K3MA-L, do not connect the surge absorber to the input unit for temperature sensors.



(3) To prevent inductive noise, separate the terminal block wiring for the product from high-voltage or high-current power lines. Do not route the wiring for the product in parallel with or tie it in a bundle with power lines.

Use of separate wiring ducts or shielded cables will also be effective for noise prevention.

<Examples of noise prevention schemes>



- (4) When using a power supply noise filter, check that the filter is suitable for the supply voltage and current ratings and then install it as close as possible to the product.
- (5) Televisions, radios, or other wireless devices may cause reception interference if placed near the product.

• For usage of the product for a long time

- Avoid using the product in an area with temperature or humidity exceeding specifications, or subject to dew condensation.
 When installing the product inside a panel, be sure that the temperature around the product (not the temperature around the panel) is within the specification.
 The life of parts depends upon the ambient temperature. Higher temperature decreases and lower temperature increases the life of parts. Therefore, the life can be increased by lowering the inside temperature of the digital panel meter.
- (2) Use or store the product within the specified ambient temperature and humidity ranges. If two or more products are installed close to each other or one is installed on top of another, the inside temperature of the products may be elevated due to heat generation by products themselves, resulting in decreased life of the products. In such cases, conduct forced cooling, for example, by using a fan to ventilate the product.
- (3) Since the life of output relay depends largely upon the capacity and condition of switching, be sure to take the actual conditions of usage into consideration and to use it within the rated load and the times of its electrical life.

Using it exceeding its life may cause welding of contact points or burning.

Alphabetic Characters for Setting Data

8	6	[ď	£	۶	5	Н		۲ ،	ų	L	'n
А	В	С	D	Е	F	G	Н	I	J	К	L	Μ
n	à	p	9	٢	5	٤	Ľ	u	ņ	, U	ч	11
Ν	0	Ρ	Q	R	S	Т	U	V	W	Х	Y	Z

This manual uses the following alphabetic characters for setting data.

Table of Contents

	PREFACE	I
	GENERAL PRECAUTIONS	I
	SAFETY PRECAUTIONS	II
	NOTICE	III
	Alphabetic Characters for Setting Data	VI
	Table of Contents	VII
CHAPTER 1	INTRODUCTION	1-1
1-	1 Main Features of the K3MA	1-2
1-	2 Model Number Legend	1-4
1-	3 I/O Circuit	1-5
1-	4 Parts Name and Function	1-7
CHAPTER 2	INSTALLATION AND CONNECTION	2-1
2-	1 Installation	2-2
2-		
CHAPTER 3	APPLICATION EXAMPLES	3-1
3-	1 Monitoring the Liquid Level (K3MA-J)	3-2
3-	2 Monitoring the Internal Pressure of a Tank (K3MA-J)	3-4
3-	3 Monitoring the Temperature of an Industrial Furnace (K3MA-L)	3-6
3-	4 Monitoring the Feed Speed of a Conveyer (K3MA-F)	3-8
3-	5 Monitoring the Rotational Speed by Monitor Output of an Inverter (K3MA-	F)3-10
CHAPTER 4	INITIAL SETTING	4-1
4-	1 K3MA-J (Process meter)	4-2
4-	2 K3MA-L (Temperature meter)	4-4
4-	3 K3MA-F (Frequency/Rate meter)	4-6
CHAPTER 5	OPERATION	5-1
5-	1 Levels	5-2
5-	2 Moving among Levels	5-3
5-	3 Parameters	5-5
5-	4 Set Values	5-6
5-	5 Viewing and Changing OUT Set Values	5-7
5-	6 Setting/Releasing the Forced-zero Operation (K3MA-J)	5-9
5-	7 Displaying/Resetting the MAX/MIN Value	5-10
5-	8 Specifying the Temperature Input Correction Value (K3MA-L)	5-11
5-	9 Key Protect Setting	5-12
5-	10 Selecting an Input Type (K3MA-J/K3MA-L)	5-14
5-	11 Selecting an Input-pulse Frequency (K3MA-F)	5-16

	5-12	Specifying the Scaling Factor (K3MA-J)	-17
	5-13	Specifying the Scaling Factor (K3MA-F)	-19
	5-14	Specifying the Decimal Point Position (K3MA-J/K3MA-F)5	-22
	5-15	Specifying the Temperature Unit (K3MA-L)	-23
	5-16	Selecting a Comparative Output	-24
	5-17	Clearing All Parameters	-25
	5-18	Specifying the Number of Measurements for Averaging	-26
	5-19	Specifying the Hysteresis	-27
	5-20	Specifying the Auto-zero Time (K3MA-F)	-28
	5-21	Specifying the Start-up Compensation Time (K3MA-F)5	-30
	5-22	Specifying the Zero-limit (K3MA-J)	-31
	5-23	Changing the Display Color	-33
	5-24	Changing the Display Auto-return Time	-34
	5-25	Changing the Move-to-Protect-Level Time	-35
	сг		
CHAPTER	ог	FUNCTION DESCRIPTION6)-1
	ог 6-1	Measurement (K3MA-J)	
	6-1		-2
	6-1 6-2	Measurement (K3MA-J)6	-2 -5
	6-1 6-2	Measurement (K3MA-J)	-2 -5 -6
	6-1 6-2 6-3	Measurement (K3MA-J)	-2 -5 -6 -10
	6-1 6-2 6-3 6-4	Measurement (K3MA-J)	-2 -5 -6 -10 -11
	6-1 6-2 6-3 6-4 6-5 6-6	Measurement (K3MA-J)	-2 -5 -6 -10 -11 -12
	6-1 6-2 6-3 6-4 6-5 6-6 6-7	Measurement (K3MA-J) 6 Measurement (K3MA-L) 6 Measurement (K3MA-F) 6 Average Processing 6 Comparative Output 6 Hysteresis 6	-2 -5 -6 -10 -11 -12 -13
CHAPTER	6-1 6-2 6-3 6-4 6-5 6-6 6-7	Measurement (K3MA-J)	-2 -5 -6 -10 -11 -12 -13
CHAPTER	6-1 6-2 6-3 6-4 6-5 6-6 6-7 7 7 7-1	Measurement (K3MA-J) 6 Measurement (K3MA-L) 6 Measurement (K3MA-F) 6 Average Processing 6 Comparative Output 6 Hysteresis 6 Display Color Change 6 FROUBLESHOOTING GUIDE 7	-2 -5 -6 -10 -11 -12 -13 7-1 -2
CHAPTER	6-1 6-2 6-3 6-4 6-5 6-6 6-7 7 7 7-1 7-2	Measurement (K3MA-J) 6 Measurement (K3MA-L) 6 Measurement (K3MA-F) 6 Average Processing 6 Comparative Output 6 Hysteresis 6 Display Color Change 6 ROUBLESHOOTING GUIDE 7 Indication of Error 7	-2 -5 -6 -10 -11 -12 -13 7-1 -2 -3
CHAPTER	6-1 6-2 6-3 6-4 6-5 6-6 6-7 7 7 7-1 7-2	Measurement (K3MA-J) 6 Measurement (K3MA-L) 6 Measurement (K3MA-F) 6 Average Processing 6 Comparative Output 6 Hysteresis 6 Display Color Change 6 FROUBLESHOOTING GUIDE 7 Indication of Error 7 Troubleshooting Table 7	-2 -5 -6 -10 -11 -12 -13 7-1 -2 -3

CHAPTER 1

INTRODUCTION

This chapter provides an overview and parts name of the product.

1-1	Main Features of the K3MA	.1-2
1-2	Model Number Legend	.1-4
1-3	I/O Circuit	.1-5
	Input Circuit Diagrams/Output Circuit Diagrams	
1-4	Parts Name and Function	.1-7

1-1 Main Features of the K3MA

The K3MA is a digital panel meter that is capable of converting an input signal into a digital value and displaying it on the main indicator.

The main features of the product include the following.

Measurement

This feature measures an input signal and displays it as a digital value.

The input signal to be measured by each type is as follows.

K3MA-J : Voltage/Current



Scaling

(Only K3MA-J/F) For

intuitively.

desired physical value. For example, when a pressure sensor is connected, in which a current range of 4-20 mA corresponds to a pressure range of 0-100 kPa, the readout for the input of 4 mA is converted into "0" and that for the input of 20 mA is converted into "100" (kPa). Since Scaling converts an input signal as a value of current into a unit (kPa) that is used in the system, it will enable you to get the value

This feature converts an input signal into a



Comparative Output

This feature compares a scaled value (measurement value) with a programmed OUT set value and produces output according to the comparison result.

This is useful in monitoring various systems for malfunction or determining whether products are within acceptance limits.



Three types of comparative outputs are available: those produced at the OUT upperlimit value, the OUT lower-limit value, and both the OUT values.



Forced-zero This feature shifts a process value to zero, and can be used to evaluate and display the deviation of a process value from a reference value.



Display Color Change In the example shown below, the display color is programmed so that it changes from green to red when a comparative output turns ON. The display color can also be programmed so that it is fixed to "red" or "green".



*As for K3MA-L, only one reference value can be set.

1-2 Model Number Legend



1-3 I/O Circuit

■ Input Circuit Diagrams

Analog Input



Pulse Input



Output Circuit Diagrams

Contact Output



• Internal Block Diagram



1-4 Parts Name and Function



	Name	Function
N	lain indicator	Displays a process value, parameter code, or set value.
	1 (Comparative output 1)	Is on when comparative output 1 is on, and off when comparative output 1 is off.
	2 (Comparative output 2)	Is on when comparative output 2 is on, and off when com- parative output 2 is off. (Only K3MA-J/K3MA-F.)
	SV (Set value)	Stays on while a set value is displayed or being changed, and off at all other times.
Operation indicator	Max (MAX value)	Stays on while a MAX value is displayed, and off at all other times.
sections	Min (MIN value)	Stays on while a MIN value is displayed, and off at all other times.
	T (Teaching)	Stays on while a set value that can be taught is displayed, and blinks during teaching. Stays off at all other times. (Only K3MA-J/K3MA-F)
	Z (Forced-zero)	Is on when zero-shifting by forced-zero operation is active. Turns off when forced-zero operation is canceled. (Only K3MA-J)
L	evel indicator	Indicates the current level.
М	AX/MIN key	Is used to select current value, MAX value, or MIN value for indication and to reset MAX/MIN value.
	Level key	Is used to change one level to another.
	Mode key	Is used to select a parameter to be displayed.
	Shift key	Is used to check the set value of a parameter or enter the change state when the parameter is displayed. Is used to shift the figure of the set value when it is in the change state.
	Up key	Is used to change the set value in the change state. Is used to execute or cancel the forced-zero operation when a process value is displayed. (Only K3MA-J)

CHAPTER 2

INSTALLATION AND CONNECTION

This chapter describes how to install and connect the product before turning the power on.

2-1	Installation2-2
	Dimensions/Panel Cutout Dimensions/Installation Procedure/Visibility of LCD
2-2	I/O Terminal Connections2-4
	Terminal Arrangement /Terminal Connection

2-1 Installation

Dimensions



Character size in main indicator





Panel Cutout Dimensions



Fit the product into a rectangular panel cutout, put the adapter in the fixing grooves on the left and right surfaces of the rear case, and push the product until the gap between the product and the panel surface is minimized.

Installation Procedure

- (1) Fit the product into a rectangular panel cutout for installation.
- (2) If you want to make the product waterproof, insert a watertight packing in the product.



(3) Put the adapter in the fixing grooves on the left and right surfaces of the rear case, push it until it contacts with the panel, and fix it.



Visibility of LCD

K3MA is designed to obtain optimum visibility from the angle shown below.



2-2 I/O Terminal Connections



Terminal Arrangement

Terminal No.	Name	Description	Applicable model
A1-A2	Operation power supply	Operation power supply terminals	All models
B5-B6	Sensor power supply	Sensor power supply terminals	K3MA-F
E1-E3 E2-E3	Comparative	Provides comparative output.	K3MA-J/K3MA-F
E1/E3-E2	output		K3MA-L
E4/E6-E5		Voltage /current analog terminals	K3MA-J
E4-E5-E6	Input	Thermometer/resistance thermometer ter- minals	K3MA-L
E4/E6-E5		Open collector pulse/voltage pulse input device terminals	K3MA-F

Terminal Connection

Use crimp contact type terminals as shown below.



Power Supply



Connect the following power supply to terminals A1 and A2.

100-240 VAC	50/60 Hz	6 VA
24 VAC/DC	50/60 Hz	4.5 VA / 4.5 W (Non-polar)

Note that, when turned on, the product will require the operation power supply to have more supply capacity than rated. If multiple products are used, the power supply must be able to afford to supply power to the products.

• Sensor Power Supply (Only K3MA-F)

The following sensor power supply can be supplied from terminals B5 and B6.



12VDC 40 mA

Comparative Output



Comparative output is output to terminals E1-E3.

Configuration of contact point is as follows.

K3MA-J/K3MA-F: $1a \times 2$

K3MA-L:

Connect load within specifications.

The electrical life of the relay is 100,000 times.

1c



Input



Input signals to be measured.

Input that can be measured by each model is as follows:

Voltage/Current (K3MA-J)

According to the input type, connect input devices to terminals shown below. Be sure not to exceed the absolute maximum rating even for a moment.



Temperature (K3MA-L)

According to the input type, connect input devices to the terminals E4-E6.





Resistance thermometer

Pulse signals (K3MA-F)

According to the types of signals to be input, connect input devices as shown below.



For the PNP sensor input connection, refer to "1-3 I/O Circuit".

The input equipment connected to these terminals must meet the following conditions.

Transistor:	ON residual voltage:	2.5 V max.
	OFF leakage current:	0.1 mA max.
	Current leakage with Transistor turned ON:	15 mA min.
Relay:	Min. load current:	5 mA max.
Voltage pulse	e:H Level:	4.5 to 30 V
	L Level:	0 to 2 V
	Input impedance:	10KΩ

CHAPTER 3

APPLICATION EXAMPLES

This chapter shows some examples of product applications.

3-1	Monitoring the Liquid Level (K3MA-J)	3-2
3-2	Monitoring the Internal Pressure of a Tank (K3MA-J)	3-4
3-3	Monitoring the Temperature of an Industrial Furnace (K3MA-L)	3-6
3-4	Monitoring the Feed Speed of a Conveyer (K3MA-F)	3-8
3-5	Monitoring the Rotational Speed by Monitor Output of an Inverter (K3MA-F) .	3-10

3-1 Monitoring the Liquid Level (кзма-J)

Application



- K3MA-J monitors the liquid level.
- Using an ultrasonic displacement sensor, E4PA-LS600-M1, the distance to the liquid level is detected.
 (When the distance is 800-6000 mm, the output of the E4PA-LS600-M1 is 4-20 mA.)
- The unit of indicated values by the K3MA-J is "m", and the values are indicated to three decimal places.
- Four measurements are averaged for stable indication.
- Since the liquid can not be completely discharged, the liquid level less than 0.05 m is always indicated as 0 m.
- When the liquid level reaches 4.5 m, the comparative output 1 is turned ON.
- When the liquid level decreases to 0.5 m, the comparative output 2 is turned ON.

Wiring



Parameter Setting • The scaling is set as follows.

INP1: 4.00 DSP1: 5200 INP2: 20.00 DSP2: 0

Position of decimal point: 00.000

- The times of measurements for averaging is set to 4.
- The zero-limit is turned ON and the zero-limit value is set to 50.
- Comparative output 1 is used to generate an upper-limit signal action and the OUT upper-limit value is set to "4.500 m".
- Comparative output 2 is used to generate a lower-limit signal action and the OUT lower-limit value is set to "0.500 m".

Level	Parameter	Set value
	in-t	4-20
	EnP.1	4.00
	dSP. I	S200
Initial actting	InP.2	20.00
Initial setting	dSP.2	8
	dP	00.000
	älle I.E	HE
	aUE 2.E	Lõ
Advanced-	<i>R</i> uն	ч
function	E-LIA	ăn
setting	LIA-P	S0
Operation	alle I	4.SOO
setting	aurs	0.500

For details of parameters, refer to "CHAPTER 5 OPERATION".

The analog output characteristic mode of the sensor is set to "decrease". For details on sensor setting, refer to the Operation Manual for the sensor E4PA.

Operation



- When the liquid level reaches 4.5 m, comparative output 1 is output.
- When the liquid level decreases to 0.5 m, comparative output 2 is output.

3-2 Monitoring the Internal Pressure of a Tank (K3MA-J)

Application



- The K3MA-J monitors the internal pressure of a tank.
- The internal pressure of the tank is measured with a pressure sensor E8AA-M10. (When the pressure is 0-980 kPa, current of 4-20 mA is generated.)
- The unit of indicated values by the K3MA-J is "kPa", and the values are indicated to one tenth's.
- When the internal pressure of the tank reaches 550 kPa, comparative output 1 is turned ON.
- When the internal pressure of the tank decreases to 100 kPa, comparative output 2 is turned ON.

Wiring



Parameter Setting • The scaling is set as follows.

INP1: 4.00 DSP1: 0 INP2: 20.00 DSP2: 9800

Position of decimal point: aaaa.a

- Comparative output 1 is used to generate an upper-limit signal action and the OUT upper-limit value is set to "550.0 kPa".
- Comparative output 2 is used to generate a lower-limit signal action and the OUT lower-limit value is set to "100.0 kPa".

Level	Parameter	Set value
	in-t	4-20
	inP.1	4.00
	d5P. l	0
Initial satting	InP.2	20.00
Initial setting	d5P.2	9800
	dP	0000.0
	ā∐E I.E	HE
	alif5'F	Lõ
Operation	alle I	SS0.0
setting	aurs	100.0

For details of parameters, refer to "CHAPTER 5 OPERATION".

Operation



- When the internal pressure of the tank reaches 550.0 kPa, comparative output 1 is turned ON.
- When the internal pressure decreases to 100.0 kPa, comparative output 2 is turned ON.

3-3 Monitoring the Temperature of an Industrial Furnace (K3MA-L)

Application



- The K3MA-L monitors the temperature of an industrial furnace.
- The internal temperature of the furnace is measured with a thermocouple E52-PR.

(The temperature range to be measured by E52-PR is 0-1,400 $^\circ$ C.)

- The unit of indicated values by the K3MA-L is "°C".
- When the internal temperature of the furnace reaches 1000 °C or lower than 800 °C, comparative output 1 is turned ON.

Wiring



Parameter Setting

٠

- The input type is set to 16 (R element).
- The unit of temperature is set to "°C".
- Comparative output 1 is used as outside-the-range signal action, and the OUT upper-limit value is set to "1000°C" and the OUT lower-limit value is set to "800°C".

Level	Parameter	Set value
Initial setting	in-t	15
	d-U	E
	ä∐E I.E	HE-Lā
Operation	AUE I.H	1000
setting	alle I.L	800

For details of parameters, refer to "CHAPTER 5 OPERATION".

Operation



When the internal temperature reaches 1000 °C or lower than 800 °C, comparative output 1 is turned ON.

3-4 Monitoring the Feed Speed of a Conveyer (K3MA-F)

Application



- The K3MA-F monitors the feed speed of a conveyer.
- Two rollers with a diameter of 0.1 m are used for the conveyer.
- A gear to detect the speed of rotation is attached to the axis of one roller and its rotation is converted into pulse signals by a proximity switch E2E-X5E1.
- The unit of indicated values by the K3MA-F is "m/min" and the values are indicated to one tenth's.
- When the speed reaches 22.0 m/min, comparative output 1 is turned ON.
- When the speed decreases to 18.0 m/min, comparative output 2 is turned ON.

Wiring



Parameter Setting • The scaling is set as follows.

INP: 100 DSP: 18850 Position of decimal point:

(Calculation of scaling value)

Peripheral velocity D is expressed by the next equation.

Peripheral velocity D (m/min) = f×60×d× π

- f: Frequency (Hz)
- d: Roller diameter (m)

The scaling factor $(60 \times d \times \pi)$ is calculated and multiplied by 10 to indicate down to one tenth's. The value obtained is 188.496.

The scaling factor is set to a larger value to minimize the errors.

(INP is set to "100" and DSP is set to "18850.")

- Comparative output 1 is used to generate an upper-limit signal action and the OUT upper-limit value is set to "22.0 m/min."
- Comparative output 2 is used to generate an lower-limit signal action and the OUT lower-limit value is set to "18.0 m/min."

Level	Parameter	Set value
Initial setting	P-FrE	30
	inP	100
	dSP	18850
	dP	0000.0
	ā∐E I.E	HE
	aUE 2.E	Lõ
Operation setting	állt í	0.55
	aue 2	18.0

For details of parameters, refer to "CHAPTER 5 OPERATION".

Operation



- When the feed speed reaches 22.0 m/min, comparative output 1 is turned ON.
- When the feed speed decreases to 18.0 m/min, comparative output 2 is turned ON.

3-5 Monitoring the Rotational Speed by Monitor Output of an Inverter (кзма-ғ)

Application



- The K3MA-F monitors the rotational speed by monitor output of an inverter.
- The monitor output of the inverter produces a voltage pulse proportional to the rotational speed of the motor. When the rotational speed of the motor is 60 rps, it produces 1440 Hz.
- The unit of indicated values by the K3MA-F is "rpm".
- When the rotational speed reaches 3000 rpm, comparative output 1 is turned ON.
- When the rotational speed decreases to 2000 rpm, comparative output 2 is turned ON.

Wiring



Parameter Setting

- The input type is set to 5K.
- The scaling is set as follows.
 - INP: 1440

DSP: 3600

Position of decimal point: 00000

(Calculation of scaling factor)

Since 60 rps can be converted into 3600 rpm, the scaling is set in such a way that an input of 1440 Hz is indicated as 3600 rpm.

• Comparative output 1 is used to generate an upper-limit signal action and the OUT upper-limit value is set to "3000 rpm".

Level	Parameter	Set value
Initial setting	P-F-E	SP
	inP	1440
	dSP	3600
	dP	00000
	ā∐E I.E	HE
	aUE 2.E	Lõ
Operation	állt í	3000
setting	aue 2	2000

 Comparative output 2 is used to generate a lower-limit signal action and the OUT lower-limit value is set to "2000 rpm".

For details of parameters, refer to "CHAPTER 5 OPERATION".

Operation



- When the rotational speed reaches 3000 rpm, comparative output 1 is turned ON.
- When the rotational speed decreases to 2000 rpm, comparative output 2 is turned ON.

CHAPTER 4

INITIAL SETTING

The K3MA includes models for Process meter, Temperature meter, and Frequency/ Rate meter Device.

This chapter explains the flow of initial setting for each of these models.

4-1	K3MA-J (Process meter)4	1-2
4-2	K3MA-L (Temperature meter)4	1-4
4-3	K3MA-F (Frequency/Rate meter)4	1-6
4-1 K3MA-J (Process meter)

The following example shows the flow of initial setting for K3MA-J.



Flow of Initial Setting

A. Check wiring for correct connection and power the product on.

The product is factory set to have an analog input range of 4 to 20 mA.

If an input that falls outside this range is received, the main indicator of the product will read "**5.***Err*" and blink, indicating an "input range over" error occurs. This is not a trouble of the product.

B. Set "input type" to " ± 10 V".

- 1. Make sure the main indicator displays the current process value (the product is at the operation level). Then press the \Box key for at least 3 seconds. The product will move to the initial setting level.
- 2. Set parameter "Ln-L" to " III".
- **C.** Specify the scaling factor.
 - 1. Set parameter "*LoP*. *I*" to "*D.DD*".
 - 2. Set parameter "d5P. I" to "0".
 - 3. Set parameter "LoP.2" to " 10.00".
 - 4. Set parameter "*d5P.2*" to "*5000*".
- **D.** Specify the decimal point position.
 - 1. Set parameter "*d*^{*p*}" to "*oooo.o*".

E. Set "OUT1 value type" to "upper limit" and "OUT2 value type" to "lower limit".

- 1. Set parameter "olle I.E." to "HE".
- 2. Set parameter "olle 2.E" to "Lo".

NOTE

automatically.

order.

The "input type", "scaling factor", and "decimal point

position" should be set in this

Otherwise, auto-initialization

of parameters may result in a

factor and then the input type, the scaling factor is initialized

failure in parameter setting. If you specify the scaling

NITIAL SETTING

F. Set the OUT1 value to "450.0" and the OUT2 value to "50.0".

- 1. Make sure the main indicator displays an initial setting level parameter (the product is at the initial setting level). Then press the \Box key and hold it down for at least one second. The product will move to the operation level.
- 2. Set parameter "*ill I*" to "**450.0**".
- 3. Set parameter "*all* **2**" to "**50.0**".
- G. Bring the product into measuring operation.

Clear All

setting level.

The "number of measurements for averaging" and "hysteresis" can be changed if required. These parameters are to be set at the advanced-function

If you are confused about how parameters have been set during initial setting, you can clear all the parameters and start all over again.

For details on how to clear all parameters, refer to Section 5-17 Clearing All Parameters.

*For details on parameter setting, refer to "CHAPTER 5 OPERATION".

4-2 K3MA-L (Temperature meter)

The following example shows the flow of initial setting for K3MA-L.

Setting example> Display the unit of the temperature of the industrial furnace with °C. Use a common type thermocouple (R element) to measure the temperature. When the process value (readout) reaches 800 °C or decreases to 1,000 °C, comparative output 1 is produced. Image: Comparative output 1 Comparative output 1 Setting example> Normal Comparative output 1

Flow of Initial Setting

A. Check wiring for correct connection and power the product on.

The product is factory set to have an input type of "5" (thermocouple K: - 200-1300 °C).

- **B.** Set "input type" to "thermocouple (R: 0-1700 °C)".
 - 1. Make sure the main indicator displays the current process value (the product is at the operation level). Then press the \Box key for at least 3 seconds. The product will move to the initial setting level.
 - 2. Set parameter "Lo-L" to " 15".
- **C.** Set "temperature unit" to "°C".
 - 1. Set parameter "d U" to " \mathcal{L} ".
- **D.** Set "OUT1 value type" to "outside-the-range".
 - 1. Set parameter "old I.E." to "HI-Lo".
- **E.** Set the OUT1 upper-limit value to " **IQQO**" and the OUT1 lower-limit value to "**BQO**".
 - 1. Make sure the main indicator displays an initial setting level parameter (the product is at the initial setting level). Then press the \Box key for at least one second. The product will move to the operation level.
 - 2. Set parameter "out I.H" to " 1000".
 - 3. Set parameter "all IL" to "800".

TIPS

The "number of measurements for averaging" and "hysteresis" can be changed if required. These parameters are to be set at the advanced-function setting level. **F.** Bring the product into measuring operation.

Clear All

If you are confused about how parameters have been set during initial setting, you can clear all the parameters and start all over again.

For details on how to clear all parameters, refer to "5-17 Clearing All Parameters".

*For details on parameter setting, refer to "CHAPTER 5 OPERATION".

4-3 K3MA-F (Frequency/Rate meter)

The following example shows the flow of initial setting for K3MA-F.

<Setting example> The speed of a belt conveyer is indicated with the unit of m/min. The number of pulses per one rotation of the rotor is 4. The diameter of the rotor is 12 cm. When the process value reaches 10.500 m/min, comparative output 1 is produced. When the process value decreases to 9.500 m/min, comparative output 2 is produced. – m/min Comparative Comparative Normal output 2 output 1 12cm 9.500 10.500 m/min m/min

How to Determine the Scaling Factor

Determine the scaling factor as follows.

```
Rotor rotational speed (r/min)
=Input frequency (Hz) /Number of pulses per rotation \times 60
Belt speed (m/min) = \pi × Rotor diameter (m) × Rotational speed (r/min)
```

Hence the speed is given as

```
Belt speed (m/min) = 3.14159 \cdot \cdot \cdot \times 0.12 \times 60/4 \times Input frequency (Hz).
```

Namely,

Belt speed (m/min) = $5.654866 \cdot \cdot \cdot \times$ Input frequency (Hz).

Multiply the result by 1000 to enable a readout to be displayed to three decimal places.

Belt speed (m/min) = $5654.866 \cdot \cdot \cdot \times$ Input frequency (Hz).

To minimize the scaling operation error, select a convenient numerical value for the scaling input value and such a combination of input value and readout that allows readouts to contain the largest possible number of digits. In this example, the input frequency is set to 10 Hz so that the readout is 56549.



Flow of Initial Setting

A. Check wiring for correct connection and power the product on.

The product is factory set to have a pulse frequency of 5 kHz.

B. Set "pulse frequency" to "30 Hz".

NOTE

"Pulse frequency", "scaling factor", and "decimal point position" should be set in this order.

Otherwise, auto-initialization of parameters may result in a failure in parameter setting. If you specify the scaling factor and then the pulse frequency, the scaling factor is initialized automatically.

- 1. Make sure the main indicator displays the current process value (the product is at the operation level). Then press the \Box key for at least three seconds. The product will move to the initial setting level.
- 2. Since it is considered that, taking the application into account, input frequency may be around 2 Hz, may be less than 30 Hz at all events, set the parameter at the initial setting level "P F E" to " $\exists \Omega$ ".
- **C.** Specify the scaling factor.
 - 1. Set parameter "*LoP*" to " *10.00*".
 - 2. Set parameter "dSP" to "56549".
- **D.** Specify the "decimal point position".
 - 1. Set parameter "*d*^{*p*}" to "*oo.ooo*".

E. Set "OUT1 value type" to "upper limit", and "OUT2 value type" to "lower limit".

- 1. Set parameter "*GUE IE*" to "*HE*".
- 2. Set parameter "ollEEE" to "Lo".

F. Set the OUT1 value to " 10.500" and the OUT2 value to "9.500".

- 1. Make sure the main indicator displays an initial setting level parameter. Then press the □ key for at least one second. The product will move to the operation level.
- 2. Set parameter "646 I" to " 10.500".
- 3. Set parameter "*GUE 2*" to "**9.500**".
- **G.** Bring the product into measuring operation.

Clear All

If you are confused about how parameters have been set during initial setting, you can clear all the parameters and start all over again.

For details on how to clear all parameters, refer to "5-17 Clearing All Parameters".

*For details on parameter setting, refer to "CHAPTER 5 OPERATION".

The "number of measurements for averaging" and "hysteresis" can be changed if required. These parameters are to be set at the advanced-function setting level. INITIAL SETTING

CHAPTER 5

OPERATION

This chapter describes how to move among levels, change parameters, and operate the product from the front panel.

5-1	Levels	.5-2
5-2	Moving among Levels	.5-3
5-3	Parameters	.5-5
5-4	Set Values	.5-6
5-5	Viewing and Changing OUT Set Values	.5-7
5-6	Setting/Releasing the Forced-zero Operation (K3MA-J)	.5-9
5-7	Displaying/Resetting the MAX/MIN Value	.5-10
5-8	Specifying the Temperature Input Correction Value (K3MA-L)	.5-11
5-9	Key Protect Setting	.5-12
5-10	Selecting an Input Type (K3MA-J/K3MA-L)	.5-14
5-11	Selecting an Input-pulse Frequency (K3MA-F)	.5-16
5-12	Specifying the Scaling Factor (K3MA-J)	.5-17
5-13	Specifying the Scaling Factor (K3MA-F)	.5-19
5-14	Specifying the Decimal Point Position (K3MA-J/K3MA-F)	.5-22
5-15	Specifying the Temperature Unit (K3MA-L)	.5-23
5-16	Selecting a Comparative Output	.5-24
5-17	Clearing All Parameters	.5-25
5-18	Specifying the Number of Measurements for Averaging	.5-26
5-19	Specifying the Hysteresis	.5-27
5-20	Specifying the Auto-zero Time (K3MA-F)	.5-28
5-21	Specifying the Start-up Compensation Time (K3MA-F)	.5-30
5-22	Specifying the Zero-limit (K3MA-J)	.5-31
5-23	Changing the Display Color	.5-33
5-24	Changing the Display Auto-return Time	.5-34
5-25	Changing the Move-to-Protect-Level Time	.5-35

5-1 Levels

Level	Function	Measurement
Protect	This level allows parameter setting for protec- tion against unauthorized or inadvertent key operation. Access to protected levels or set- ting items is disabled.	Yes
Operation	This level represents the normal operation state in which the product can accept input signals and provide comparative outputs. At this operation level, not only readout of the current process value but also access to or changes of OUT set values are allowed. The product enters this level at power-on.	Yes
Adjustment	This level executes specifying the tempera- ture input correction value. (Only K3MA-L.)	Yes
Initial setting	This level allows initial setting of the input type, type of OUT set values, and scaling fac- tor.	No
Advanced-func- tion setting	This level allows setting of the number of measurements for averaging. Customizations such as a change in display color are also pos- sible at this level.	No

The setting items of the product are grouped into five "**levels**" as follows.

During operation of the product, the level indicator designates the current level. Alphabetic characters shown on the level indicator and their corresponding levels are shown below.



Character	Level
p	Protect level (Protect)
OFF	Operation level
8	Adjustment level (Adjustment)
5	Initial Setting level (initial Setting)
F	Advanced Function setting level (advanced Function setting)

5-2 Moving among Levels



Moving to the protect level	Press the + keys simultaneously and hold them down for at least 5 seconds. The main indicator starts blinking and then the product enters the protect level. The time required for moving to the protect level can be changed using the "move-to-protect-level time" parameter at the advanced-function setting level.
	To return from the protect level to the operation level, press the $\square + \boxdot$ keys simultaneously and hold them down for at least one second.
Moving to the adjustment level	Press the \square key at the operation level. When you release the key, the product enters the adjustment level.
,	To return from the adjustment level to the operation level, press the \square key.
Moving to the initial setting level	Press the \square key and hold it down for one second. The main indicator starts blinking. Continue holding the key down further at least two seconds. The product will return to the initial setting level.
	To return from the initial setting level to the operation level, press the \square key and hold it down for at least one second.

Moving to the initial setting level

Moving to the advanced-function setting level involves some particular steps. Proceed as follows.

- **A.** Move to the initial setting level and press the 🖾 key to display the "advanced-function setting level" parameter.
 - Parameter "Riou" will appear on the main indicator.
- **B.** Press the \bowtie key to cause the set value of the parameter (password) to appear on the main indicator.
- **C.** Press the > key again to allow the password to be changed.
- **D.** Use the > and < keys to enter a password of "-0169".
- **E.** Press the \square key to save the password.
 - If the password is correct, the product enters the advanced-function setting level.
 - If the password is incorrect, the product remains at the initial setting level and its indicator displays the next initial setting parameter.



5-3 Parameters

Setting items at each level are called "parameters".

Use the \bigcirc key to select a parameter.



TIPS

Conceptual figure for setting scaling



- *1 Is displayed when the parameter "OUT1 type" is "upper-limit" or "lower-limit".
- * 2 Is displayed when the parameter "OUT1 type" is "outside-the-range".
- * 3 Is displayed when the parameter "OUT2 type" is "upper-limit" or "lower-limit".
- *4 Is displayed when the parameter "OUT2 type" is "outside-the-range".
- *5 Is displayed when the parameter "Setting level lockout" is "0".
- *6 Is displayed with K3MA-J.
- *7 Is displayed with K3MA-L.
- *8 Is displayed with K3MA-F.
- *9 Is displayed when the parameter "zero limit" is "ON".

5-4 Set Values

Parameter setting are called "set values".

Set values include those consisting of "numerics" and "alphabets".

A state in which a set value is being displayed on the main indicator is called "**the monitor state**". A state in which a set value can be changed is called "**the change state**".

Perform the following steps to display or change a set value.

Procedure

- **A.** Press the **>** key when a parameter is displayed on the main indicator. The product enters the monitor state and the set value of the parameter will be displayed on the main indicator.
 - When the product is in the monitor state, "SV" in the operation indicator section is illuminated, indicating the readout on the main indicator is a set value.
- **B.** If you do not want to change the set value, press the 🖾 key in the monitor state to go to the next parameter.
- **C.** Press the \square key in the monitor state to cause the product to enter the change state.
 - A digit that can be changed will start blinking.
- **D.** Use the \gg and \bowtie keys to change the set value.
 - If no key is operated for five seconds, the product save the current value and returns to the monitor state automatically.
- **E.** Press the \square key to go to the next parameter.
 - The change in setting is saved in memory



During setting of operation or adjustment level parameters, the return action of the product varies depending on the "display auto-return time" setting.

If the "display auto-return time" is set to less than five seconds, e.g., three seconds, no key operation for three seconds in the change state will return the product to the current value display mode, not to the monitor state.

OPERATION

5-5 Viewing and Changing OUT Set Values Operation level



The operation level allows you to check and change OUT set values.

The product continues measuring in the middle of checking and changing OUT set values.

Procedure

- **A.** Press the 🔁 key several times until parameter OUT2 is displayed on the main indicator.
- **B.** Press the > key to display the OUT2 value on the main indicator.
 - The product enters the monitor state and shows the OUT2 value on the main indicator.
 - "SV" in the operation indicator section is illuminated, indicating the value shown on the main indicator is a set value.
 - If you simply want to check the set value, proceed to step **E**..
- **C.** Press the \bowtie key in the monitor state to cause the product to enter the change state.
 - A digit that can be changed will start blinking.

D. Use the > and < keys to change the set value.

- If no key is operated for five seconds, the product saves the current value and returns to the monitor state automatically.
- **E.** Press the 🔄 key several times until the product returns to the current value display mode.



OUT set value	Indication	Description	
OUT1 value	ällt I	When the process value increases or decreases to this value, comparative output 1 is provided.	
OUT1 upper-limit value	ä∐E I.X	When the process value falls outside-the- range specified by these values, compara-	
OUT1 lower-limit value	āUE I.L	tive output 1 is provided.	
OUT2 value		When the process value increases or decreases to this value, comparative output 2 is provided.	
OUT2 upper-limit value	ãUE2.X	When the process value falls outside-the- range specified by these values, compara-	
OUT2 lower-limit value	ăUE2.L	tive output 2 is provided.	

Available OUT set values and their indications are as follows.

(With K3MA-L, OUT2 value, OUT2 upper-limit value, and OUT2 lower limit value are not available.)

For details of comparative output, refer to "6-5 Comparative Output".

5-6 Setting/Releasing the Forced-zero Operation (K3MA-J)

Operation level

Setting the forced-zero

The forced-zero operation allows you to shift the current value to zero forcedly.



Procedure

- A. Press the \land key when a current value is displayed on the main indicator. (Release the key within one second.)
 - The current value will be shifted to zero.
 - "ZERO" in the operator indication section is illuminated, indicating the current value has been shifted to zero.



The forced-zero operation is not available when the current value is not normal (input abnormally, outsidethe-range specified, not measured yet).



Releasing the forced zero

Release the forced-zero operation.

- - The shifted value will be restored to the current value.
 - "ZERO" in the operation indicator section will go off, indicating the current value is no longer shifted.

5-7 Displaying/Resetting the MAX/MIN Value

Displaying the MAX/MIN value

The maximum value (MAX) and minimum value (MIN) of the current value can be displayed.

Procedure

- **A.** Press the \bigtriangleup key when a current value is displayed on the main indicator.
 - The MAX value will be displayed on the main indicator.
 - "Max" in the operator indicator section is illuminated, indicating the value shown on the main indicator is the MAX value.

B. Press the \bigcirc key when the MAX value is displayed on the main indicator.

- The MIN value will be displayed on the main indicator.
- "Min" in the operation indicator section is illuminated, indicating the value shown on the main indicator is the MIN value.

C. Press the \bigcirc key when the MIN value is displayed on the main indicator.

- A current value will be displayed on the main indicator.
- "Max" or "Min" in the operation indicator section will go off, indicating the value shown on the main indicator is a current value.



Press the " $\overline{\diamond}$ " key and hold it down for one second when the Max or Min value is displayed.

The Max/Min value will be reset to a current value.

Resetting the MAX/MIN Value

The MAX value and MIN value can be reset to a current value.

- A. Press the key for at least one second when a process value(Current value/ Max valie/Min value) is displayed on the main indicator.
 - Both the MAX value and MIN value are reset to a current value.

5-8 Specifying the Temperature Input Correction Value (кзма-L)

Adjustment level



This parameter allows you to set a correction value for temperature input.

The input temperature is corrected by the quantity of set value in the whole of sensor range.

If the correction value is 1.2°C, the current value of 200°C before correction will be processed as 201.2°C after correction.



Parameter	Set value	Description
ins	-1999-9999	-1999-9999: Temperature input correction value

Procedure

- **A.** Press the □ key at the operation level to move to the adjustment level.
 - "#" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the adjustment level.
- **B.** Press the **≫** key to display the set value of the parameter on the main indicator.
 - The current set value for temperature input correction value will appear on the main indicator.
- **C.** Press the \gg key again.
 - The set value will start blinking, indicating the product is in the change state.
- **D.** Use the > and < keys to change the set value.

E. Press the \square key to save the change.

• The change is saved and then the main indicator returns to the parameter display mode.

F. Press the \square key to return to the operation level.



—"**#** "will appear.













No key operation for 10 seconds at the adjustment level causes the product to return to the current value display mode at the operation level automatically.

5-9 Key Protect Setting

Protect level

Key protect includes "operation/adjustment lockouts", "setting level lockout", "setting change lockout", and "forced-zero lockout", and allows restrictions on moving among levels and various setting changes.

Operation/ Adjustment Lockouts

This types of key protect restrict the key operation at the operation and adjustment levels.

		Operati	Move to	
Parameter	Set value	Current value display	OUT set value display	adjustment level
68PE	0	Enable	Enable	Enable
(OAPT)	1	Enable	Enable	Disable
(0/11/)	2	Enable	Disable	Disable

Setting Level Lockout

This type of key protect restricts moving to "initial setting level" and "advanced-function setting level".

Parameter	Set value	Move to initial setting level	Move to advanced-function setting level
20 <i>9</i> 5	0	Enable	Enable
(ICPT)	1	Enable	Disable
(ICI I)	2	Disable	Disable

Setting Change Lockout

This type of key protect restricts the key operation for setting change.

It prohibits the product from entering the changing state, except that the following operation is allowed.

- Changes in set values of all parameters at the protect level
- Move to the advanced-function level

Parameter	Set value	Key operation for setting changes
YEPE	6FF	Enable
(WTPT)	ân	Disable

Forced-zero Lockout

(Only K3MA-J)

This type of key operation restricts the key operation that activates or deactivates the forced-zero function.

Parameter	Set value	Key operation for activating or deactivating the forced-zero function
ErPt	8FF	Enable
(ZRPT)	ăn.	Disable

For the factory set values, refer to the "Parameter List" at the end of this document.

"will appear.

Procedure

Appropriate setting of the "move-to-protect-level time" parameter allows you to change the time required for the product to move to the protect level.

move-to-protect-level The time is factory set to 5 seconds.

- Α. When the product is at the operation level, press the \square + \boxdot keys and hold them down for at least five seconds to enter the protect level.
 - "P" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the protect level.
- **B.** Press the \square key several times until the desired parameter appears on the main indicator
- **C.** Press the > key to display the set value of the parameter on the main indicator.
 - The current set value will appear on the main indicator
- **D.** Press the > key again.
 - The current set value will start blinking, indicating the product is in the change state.
- Ε. Use the \bowtie key to change the set value.
- F. Press the 🖻 key to go to the next parameter.
 - The change is saved.
- **G.** Press the $\square + \boxdot$ keys and hold down them for at least one second to return to the operation level.



1 second

ያ

5 seconds

5-10 Selecting an Input Type (K3MA-J/K3MA-L)Initial setting level



This parameter allows you to select an input type of the product from the following for each product model.

K3MA-J

Parameter	Set value	Description
	0-20	0-20 mA
	4-20	4-20 mA
in-t	0-5	0-5 V
(IN-T)	1-5	1-5 V
	5	±5 V
	10	±10 V

K3MA	۱-L
------	-----

Parameter	Set value		Description									
	۵	eter		-200-850°C	-300-1500°F							
	1	Pt100	Pt100	-199.9-500.0°C	-199.9-900.0°F							
	2	e ther		0.0-100.0°C	0.0-210.0°F							
	3	Resistance thermometer	JPt100	-199.9-500.0°C	-199.9-900.0°F							
	ч	Resi	JFt100	0.0-100.0°C	0.0-210.0°F							
	5		K	-200-1300°C	-300-2300°F							
	6		ĸ	-20.0-500.0°C	0.0-900.0°F							
	7		J	-100-850°C	-100-1500°F							
. .	8		J	-20.0-400.0°C	0.0-750.0°F							
נח-ג (IN-T)	9		Т	-200-400°C	-300-700°F							
(11, 1)	10	rmocouple	rmocouple	Thermocouple	couple	couple	couple	ocouple	ple	1	-199.9-400.0°C	-199.9-700.0°F
	11								Е	0-600°C	0-1100°F	
	12				L	-100-850°C	-100-1500°F					
	13	The	U	-200-400°C	-300-700°F							
	14		U	-199.9-400.0°C	-199.9-700.0°F							
	15		N	-200-1300°C	-300-2300°F							
	15	-	R	0-1700°C	0-3000°F							
	רו			1	1	1		1		S	0-1700°C	0-3000°F
	18		В	100-1800°C	300-3200°F							

Procedure

A change in input type initializes some parameters. ■ K3MA-J Parameters "*inP*. *i*", "*d5P*. *i*", "*inP*.2", "*d5P*.2", and "*dP*" are initialized according to the selected input type. The forced-zero function is deactivated. ■ K3MA-L

- No parameter is initialized.
- **A.** When the product is at the operation level, press the □ key and hold it down for at least three seconds to enter the initial setting level.
 - "5" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the initial setting level.
 - The first parameter at the initial setting level is "Lo-L".
- **B.** Press the **≫** key to display the set value of the parameter on the main indicator.
 - The set value of the input type will appear on the main indicator.
- **C.** Press the \gg key again.
 - The current set value starts blinking, indicating the product is in the change state.
- **D.** Use the \bowtie key to change the set value.
- **E.** Press the \square key to go to the next parameter.
 - The change is saved.
- **F.** Specify the values of other parameters related to the input type. (Refer to the "TIPS".)
- **G.** Press the \Box key and hold it down for at least one second to return to the operation level.









1 second



5-11 Selecting an Input-pulse Frequency Initial setting level

(K3MA-F)

in input-pulse

initializes

frequency

A change

frequency range

■ Parameters "CoP", "dSP"

and "dP" are initialized

according to the current

some parameters.

input-pulse

range.

This parameter allows you to select an input-pulse frequency range. The value of the parameter represents the upper limit of available ranges.

Parameter	Set value	Description
P-FrE	30	Measuring range: 0.05-30 Hz
(P-FRE)	SH	Measuring range: 0.05-5 kHz

If input signals come from relay contacts, set the range to "30 Hz". Doing so eliminates chattering noise from input signals.

- **A.** When the product is at the operation level, press the \Box key and hold it down for at least three seconds to cause the product to enter the initial setting level.
 - "5" will appear in the level indicator section, indicating the product has entered the initial setting level.
 - The first parameter at the initial setting level is "P-F-E".
- **B.** Press the \searrow key to display the set value of the parameter on the main indicator.
 - The current set value of the input-pulse frequency range will appear on the main indicator.
- **C.** Press the \gg key again.
 - The set value starts blinking, indicating the product is in the change state.
- **D.** Use the \bowtie key to change the set value.
- **E.** Press the \square key to go to the next parameter.
 - The change is saved.
- F. Specify the values of other parameters related to the input-pulse frequency range. (Refer to the "TIPS".)
- **G.** Press the \square key and hold it down for at least one second to return to the operation level.











5-12 Specifying the Scaling Factor (K3MA-J) nitial setting level



These parameters allow you to specify the scaling factor when you want to cause the product to display a desired value converted from the input value.

Parameter	Set value	Description
InP.1	-19999-999999	Input value corresponding to d5P . <i>l</i> .
d5P.1	-19999-99999	Output value corresponding to $2nP$. I.
InP.2	-19999-99999	Input value corresponding to d5P.2 .
d5P.2	-19999-99999	Output value corresponding to $LnP.2$.



Inverse scaling where readout decreases with increasing input is also possible.

To allow a readout of 0.0 when the input value is 4.2 mA and a readout of 100.0 when the input value is 20 mA, for example, set the parameters as follows.

- -inp. l = 4.20
- -d5P. l=0
- *CnP.2* = 20.00
- **d5P**.**2** = 1000

Specify the decimal point position of the display value with parameter "dP".

Procedure

- Α. When the product is at the operation level, press the \Box key and hold it down for at least three seconds to enter the initial setting level.
 - "5" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the initial setting level.
- **B.** Press the 📿 key several times until the parameter "EnP. I" appears on the main indicator.
 - "T" will be illuminated, indicating teaching of this parameter (scaling input value 1) is possible.
 - · For the procedure of teaching, refer to the next page.
- **C.** Press the > key to display the set value of the parameter on the main indicator.
 - The current set value of scaling input value 1 will appear on the main indicator.







5-17

The decir	nal p	oint posit	ion of		
paramete	rs	"EnP.1"	and		
"こっP.2"	is	automa	tically		
illuminate	illuminated.				
4-20 mA:	000	00			
1-5 V:	00.0	00			
±5 V:	00.0	00			
±10 V:	000	00			



Teaching scaling

The teaching function allows you to specify the value of parameters "inP. *I*" and "inP.2" also by key entry.

- **I.** The operation of **C**. causes the product to enter the monitor state. In the monitor state, press the D key instead of the operation of **D**.
 - "T" will start blinking, indicating the product is in teaching mode.
 - · Key entry permits the actual process value to be displayed on the main indicator.
- J. Press the 🔿 key again.
 - The actual process value is set as the input value and then the product will return to the monitor state.
 - Pressing the 🔄 key instead of the 🖄 key in teaching mode cancels the teaching mode and the display on the main indicator changes to the next parameter.



Description

Input value corresponding to **d5***P*.

5-13 Specifying the Scaling Factor (K3MA-F) initial setting level

Set value

0-99999

product to display a desired value converted from the input value



TIPS

revolution

(rpm)

f:

following equation.

Peripheral velocity =

Frequency(Hz)

R: Diameter of rotor (m)

P: Number of pulses per

f×60÷P×R×π (m/min)

rotation

To convert a frequency into a

peripheral velocity, use the

Revolution speed = $f \times 60 \div P$

speed

or а

The decimal point position of "inP" parameter is illuminated automatically depending on the set value of input-pulse frequency range as follows. 30 Hz: 000.00

5 kHz: 00000



These parameters allow you to specify the scaling factor when you want to cause the

Teaching by key entry is possible.

To allow a readout of 10.000 when the input value is 4.2 kHz (= 4200 Hz), for example, set the parameters as follows.

Parameter

InP

dSP

Specify the decimal point position of the display value with parameter "dP".

Procedure

- When the product is at the operation level, press Α. the \square key and hold it down for at least three seconds to enter the initial setting level.
 - "5" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the initial setting level.
- **B.** Press the 🖂 key several times until the parameter " $\mathcal{L} \cap \mathcal{P}$ " appears on the main indicator.
 - "T" will be illuminated, indicating teaching of this parameter (scaling input value) is possible.
 - · For the procedure of teaching, refer to the next page.
- **C.** Press the \searrow key to display the set value of the parameter on the main indicator.
 - The current set value of scaling input value will appear on the main indicator.

D. Press the \gg key again.

• The current set value starts blinking, indicating the product is in the change state.





illuminated







Teaching scaling

The teaching function allows you to specify the value of parameter " $\zeta \sigma^{p}$ " also by key entry.

- I. The operation of **C**. causes the product to enter the monitor state. In the monitor state, press the key instead of the operation of **D**.
 - "T" will starts blinking, indicating the product is in teaching mode.
 - Key entry permits the actual process value to be displayed on the main indicator.
- J. Press the \land key again.
 - The actual process value is set as the input value and then the product will return to the monitor state.
 - Pressing the ☑ key instead of the ▲ key in teaching mode cancels the teaching mode and the display on the main indicator changes to the next parameter.



How to Determine Appropriate Scaling Factor

To minimize the scaling operation error, select such a scaling factor that permits the largest possible number of digits to be contained in scaling display values (DSP).

The relationship between the scaling input and display values for input pulse frequency is represented by the following equation.

Scaling display value = α (multiplication factor) × Input frequency (Hz)

Where $\alpha = \text{DSP} \div \text{INP}$.

 α is often an indivisible number such as $\alpha = 5.654866...$ particularly when the input value is converted to a circumferential velocity. This is because such a conversion involves π .

There are innumerable combination of scaling input values (INP) and scaling display value (DSP) that result in α =5.654866... as follows.

INP (Hz)	DSP
1	5.654866
2	11.30973
5	28.27433
10	56.54866

On the other hand, DSPs that are programmable are limited to 5-digit integers. This means that DSPs must be rounded off to the nearest integers as follows.

INP (Hz)	Programmable DSP
1	00006
2	00011
5	00028
10	00057

Hence, if the input frequency is 1000 Hz, the error between the scaling result and the ideal value increases with the decreasing number of digits contained in the DSP.

INP (Hz)	Programmable DSP	Scaling result (Readout)	Ideal value	Error
1	00006	6000	5655	345
2	00011	5500	5655	155
5	00028	5600	5655	55
10	00057	5700	5655	45

Select a combination of the DSP and INP so that the scaling output contains the largest possible number of digits. Doing so minimizes the scaling operation error.

5-14 Specifying the Decimal Point Position (K3MA-J/K3MA-F)



This parameter allows you to specify the decimal point position of the display value.

Parameter	Set value	Description
	0.0000	Readouts are given to four decimal places.
dP	00.000	Readouts are given to three decimal places.
a۳ (DP)	000.00	Readouts are given to two decimal places.
(D1)	0.000	Readouts are given to one decimal place.
	00000	Readouts are given as integers.

Procedure

- **A.** When the product is at the operation level, press the □ key and hold it down for at least three seconds to enter the initial setting level.
 - "5" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the initial setting level.
- **B.** Press the 🔄 key several times until parameter "dP" appears on the main indicator.
- **C.** Press the **≫** key to display the set value of the parameter.
 - The current set value for the decimal point position will appear on the main indicator.
- **D.** Press the 🔊 key again.
 - The set value starts blinking, indicating the product is in the change state.
- **E.** Use the \bowtie key to change the set value.
- **F.** Press the \square key to go to the next parameter.
 - The change is saved.
- **G.** Press the \square key and hold it down for at least one second to return to the operation level.



Initial setting level











5-15 Specifying the Temperature Unit

Initial setting level

(K3MA-L)



This parameter allows you specify the temperature unit.

Parameter	Set value	Description
d-U	٢	°C
(D-U)	F	°F

- **A.** When the product is at the operation level, press the □ key and hold it down for at least three seconds to enter the initial setting level.
 - "5" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the initial setting level.
- **B.** Press the ⊡ key several times until parameter "*d*-*U*" appears on the main indicator.
- **C.** Press the **≫** key to display the set value of the parameter on the main indicator.
 - The current set value for the temperature unit will appear on the main indicator.
- **D.** Press the > key again.
 - The set value starts blinking, indicating the product is in the change state.
- **E.** Use the \bowtie key to change the set value.
- **F.** Press the \square key to go to the next parameter.
 - The change is saved.
- **G.** Press the \square key and hold it down for at least one second to return to the operation level.















5-16 Selecting a Comparative Output



These parameters allow you to select the comparative output 1 or output 2.

Parameter	Set value	Description
ālit it	нC	Upper limit: Upper-limit action
ouc i.c or	Lõ	Lower limit: Lower-limit action
6UF5'F	HZ-Lā	Outside-the-range: outside-the- range action

For the details of comparative output operating action, refer to "6-5 Comparative Output".

Procedure

- **A.** When the product is at the operation level, press the □ key and hold it down for at least three seconds to enter the initial setting level.
 - "5" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the initial setting level.
- **B.** Press the 🔄 key several times until parameter "*alle l.e.*" appears on the main indicator.
- **C.** Press the \square key to display the set value of the parameter on the main indicator.
 - The current set value for the type of comparative output will appear on the main indicator.
- **D.** Press the \gg key again.
 - The set value starts blinking, indicating the product is in the change state.
- **E.** Use the \bowtie key to change the set value.
- **F.** Press the 🖾 key to display parameter "**auter**" on the main indicator.
 - The change is saved and then the next parameter "*all**2 E* " will appear on the main indicator.
- **G.** Repeat the steps **C.** to **F.** to set parameter "*aueze*".
 - Parameter "Añãu" will appear on the main indicator when you finish setting of parameter "õub 2 b".
- **H.** Press the \square key and hold it down for at least one second to the operation level.















OPERATION

The parameter of OUT set value to be displayed at the operation level changes according to the set values of these parameters.

- To specify the OUT set value for the upper or lower-limit action, use parameter "out *".
- To specify the OUT set values for the outsidethe-range action, use parameters OUT upperlimit value "out + H" and OUT lower-limit value "out + L".

*: 1 or 2

K3MA-L does not allow you to set the parameter "auter."

Advanced-function setting level

5-17 Clearing All Parameters

(INIT)

This parameter is displayed when "Setting level lockouts" is "0".



Parameter	Set value	Description
init	6FF	
(INIT)	<u>ān</u>	Parameters are all initialized.

This function is useful in restarting the setup of the product from the default state.

For the factory set values, refer to the "Parameter List" at the end of this document.

Procedure

- **A.** When the product is at the operation level, press the \Box key and hold down it for at least three seconds to enter the initial setting level.
 - "5" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the initial setting level.
- **B.** Enter password "-0169" in the parameter "**Robu**" to enter the advanced-function setting level. For details on how to move to the advanced-function setting level, refer to "5-2 Moving among Levels".
 - "*F*" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the advanced-function setting level.
 - The first parameter at the advanced-function setting level is "Lock".
- **C.** Press the \bigcirc key to display the set value of the parameter on the main indicator.
 - Set value" *GFF* " will appear on the main indicator.

D. Press the \gg key again.

- The set value will start blinking, indicating the product is in the change state.
- **E.** Use the \bowtie key to change the set value to " δn ".
- **F.** Press the \square key to go to the next parameter.
 - All parameters are initialized.
 - Parameter "Lock" is also set to "off".
- **G.** Press the key and hold it down for at least one second to return to the initial setting level.
- **H.** Press the \Box key and hold it down for at least one second to return to the operation level.















5-18 Specifying the Number of Measurements for Averaging



(AVG)

This parameter allows you to specify the number of measurements for averaging.

Parameter	Set value	Description
Ruŭ	öff	No average processing
,100	2/4/8	Number of measurements for averaging

- **A.** When the product is at the operation level, press the □ key and hold it down for at least three seconds to enter the initial setting level.
 - "5" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the initial setting level.
- **B.** Enter password "-0169" in the parameter "Rhou" to enter the advanced-function setting level. For details on how to move to the advanced-function setting level, refer to "5-2 Moving among Levels".
 - "*F*" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the advanced-function setting level.
- **C.** Press the \square key several times until parameter " $\square \square \square$ " appears on the main indicator.
- **D.** Press the \gg key to display the set value.
 - The current set value for the number of measurements for averaging will appear on the main indicator.
- **E.** Press the \gg key again.
 - The set value will start blinking, indicating the product is in the change state.
- **F.** Press the \bowtie key to change the set value.
- **G.** Press the \square key to go to the next parameter.
 - The change is saved.
- **H.** Press the \Box key and hold it down for at least one second to return to the initial setting level.
- I. Press the \Box key and hold it down for at least one second to return to the operation level.



















5-19 Specifying the Hysteresis

Advanced-function setting level



A hysteresis setting of "0" is

"5352" is not possible.

setting of "1".

These parameters allow you to specify the hysteresis for each of comparative output 1 and 2.

Parameter	Set value	Description
XY2*	0-9999	0 to 9999 digit: Hysteresis

- assumed to be a hysteresis When the product is at the operation level, press Α. the \square key and hold it down for at least three With K3MA-L, setting of seconds to the initial setting level.
 - "5" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the initial setting level.
 - B. Enter password "-0169" in the parameter "Rifu" to enter the advanced-function setting level. For details on how to move to advanced-function setting level, refer to "5-2 Moving among Levels".
 - "^F" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the advanced-function setting level.
 - **C.** Press the \square key several times until parameter "Hys I" appears on the main indicator.
 - **D.** Press the \mathbb{X} key to display the set value on the main indicator.
 - The current set value of event input will appear on the main indicator.
 - **E.** Press the \gg key again.
 - The set value will start blinking, indicating the product is in the change state.
 - F. Use the > and > keys to change the set value.
 - **G.** Press the 🖃 key to go to parameter "##52".
 - The change is saved.
 - **H.** Repeat the Steps **D**. to **G**. for parameter "#952".
 - · The next parameter will appear on the main indicator when you finish setting of the parameter.
 - Ι. Press the \Box key and hold it down for at least one second to return to the initial setting level.
 - J. Press the \Box key and hold it down for at least one second to return to the operation level.



















5-20 Specifying the Auto-zero Time (K3MA-F)



This parameter allows you to specify the auto-zero time.

Parameter	Set value	Description
RUE 6.3	0.0- 19.9	0.0 to 19.9 sec: Auto-zero time

The auto-zero time is the length of time required for the product to return the readout to zero after pulse input interruption.

Set this parameter to a larger value than the expected time interval of input pulses (interval between pulses). Failure to do so will result in incorrect measurements.

If auto-zero time is too long, on the other hand, a long delay in lower-limit action in response to a stop of rotation may result.

In the following application where a pulse is produced per rotation at 12-6000 r/min, for example, the input pulse frequency is 0.2 to 100 Hz, which means the time interval of input pulses is 0.01 to 5 seconds. The auto-zero time should be set to five seconds or longer.



Procedure

- **A.** When the product is at the operation level, press the \Box key and hold it down for at least three seconds to enter the initial setting level.
 - "5" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the initial setting level.
- **B.** Enter password "-0169" in parameter "**Redu**" to enter the advanced-function setting level. For details on how to move to the advanced-function setting level, refer to "5-2 Moving among Levels".
 - "*F*" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the advanced-function setting level.
- **C.** Press the 🔄 key several times until parameter "RUE a.=" appears on the main indicator.
- **D.** Press the **≫** key to display the set value of the parameter on the main indicator.
 - The current set value of auto-zero time will appear on the main indicator.
- **E.** Press the > key again.
 - The set value will start blinking, indicating the product is in the change state.



Advanced-function setting level











5-21 Specifying the Start-up Compensation Time (кзма-ғ)

5-tar

(S-TMR)

This parameter allows you to specify the start-up compensation time.

ſ	Parameter	Set value	Description
	5-bar	0.0-99.9	0.0 to 99.9 seconds: start-up compensation time

The start-up compensation time is a delay between power-on of the product and the start of measurement. This function is useful in preventing output from being produced until a rotator reaches a prescribed speed.

Procedure

- **A.** When the product is at the operation level, press the □ key and hold it down for at least three seconds to enter the initial setting level.
 - "5" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the initial setting level.
- **B.** Enter password "-0169" in parameter "**Anou**" to enter the advanced-function setting level. For details on how to move to the advanced-function setting level, refer to "5-2 Moving among Levels".
 - "*F*" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the advanced-function setting level.
- **C.** Press the 🔄 key several times until parameter "**5**-*k*oc" appears on the main indicator.
- **D.** Press the **≫** key to display the set value of the parameter on the main indicator.
 - The current set value of the start-up compensation timer will appear on the main indicator.

E. Press the > key again.

- The set value will start blinking, indicating the product is in the change state.
- **F.** Use the > and < keys to change the set value.
- **G.** Press the \square key to go to the next parameter.
 - The change is saved.
- **H.** Press the \Box key and hold it down for at least one second to return to the initial setting level.
- I. Press the \Box key and hold it down for at least one second to return to the operation level.
















5-22 Specifying the Zero-limit (K3MA-J)Advanced-function setting level



These parameters allow you to specify the zero-limit.

Parameter	Set value	Description	
3-124	6FF	OFF: Zero-limit function is not available.	
(Z-LIM)	<u>ăn</u>	ON: Zero-limit function	
Lĩn-P	0-99	0 to 99: Zero-limit value	

The zero-limit is a function to process all the readouts lower than the set value as zero.

When you select "ON", the values lower than the zero-limit value are always displayed as "0".

This function is useful when you want to indicate a minus numerical value as zero or indicate the minimum value of input range as zero.



Procedure

- **A.** When the product is at the operation level, press the \Box key and hold it down for at least three seconds to enter the initial setting level.
 - "5" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the initial setting level.
- **B.** Enter password "-0169" in parameter "**Rhou**" to enter the advanced-function setting level. For details on how to move to the advanced-function setting level, refer to "5-2 Moving among Levels".
 - "F" will appear on the main indicator, indicating the product has entered the advanced-function setting level.
- **C.** Press the \square key several times until parameter $\square = L \square n$ appears on the main indicator.
- **D.** Press the **≫** key to display the set value of the parameter on the main indicator.
 - The current set value of zero-limit will appear on the main indicator.
- **E.** Press the \gg key again.
 - The set value will start blinking, indicating the product is in the change state.













5-23 Changing the Display Color

Advanced-function setting level



This parameter allows you to change the display color of the main indicator.

Parameter	Set value	Description	
1100-0 * *		The display color is normally green, and changes to red at comparative output ON.	
[ālār	Gra	Green: The display color is always green.	
(COLOR)	rEd-G		The display color is normally red, and changes to green at comparative output ON.
	rEd	Red:	The display color is always red.

Procedure

- **A.** When the product is at the operation level, press the \Box key and hold it down for at least three seconds to enter the initial setting level.
 - "5" will appear on the main indicator, indicating the product has entered the initial setting level.
- **B.** Enter password "-0169" in parameter "**Rhou**" to enter the advanced-function setting level. For details on how to move to the advanced-function setting level, refer to "5-2 Moving among Levels".
 - "*F*" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the advanced-function setting level.
- **C.** Press the 🔄 key several times until parameter "**LoLor**" appears on the main indicator.
- **D.** Press the **≫** key to display the set value of the parameter on the main indicator.
 - The current set value of changing the display color will appear on the main indicator.

E. Press the \gg key again.

- The set value will start blinking, indicating the product is in the change state.
- **F.** Use the \bowtie key to change the set value.
- **G.** Press the \square key to go to the next parameter.
 - The change is saved.
- **H.** Press the \square key and hold it down for at least one second to return to the initial setting level.
- **I.** Press the \Box key and hold it down for at least one second to return to the operation level.



















5-24 Changing the Display Auto-return Time



If the display auto-return function is activated in the

middle of parameter setting, the product saves the current

value of the parameter and then returns to the current value display mode.

TIPS

This parameter allows you to change the display auto-return time.

Parameter	Set value	Description
rEE	0	0 sec: Display auto-return is not available.
(RET)	1-99	1 to 99 sec: Display auto-return time

If no key is operated for a prescribed time, the product returns to the current value display mode at the operation/adjustment level. This prescribed time is called the display auto-return time.

Procedure

- **A.** When the product is at the operation level, press the □ key and hold it down for at least three seconds to enter the initial setting level.
 - "5" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the initial setting level.
- **B.** Enter password "-0169" in parameter "**Redu**" to enter the advanced-function setting level. For details on how to move to the advanced-function setting level, refer to "5-2 Moving among Levels".
 - "*F*" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the advanced-function setting level.
- **C.** Press the 🔄 key several times until parameter "*r E b*" appears on the main indicator.
- **D.** Press the **>** key to display the set value of the parameter on the main indicator.
 - The current set value of the display auto-return time will appear on the main indicator.
- **E.** Press the \gg key again.
 - The set value will start blinking, indicating the product is in the change state.
- **F.** Use the > and < keys to change the set value.
- **G.** Press the \square key to go to the next parameter.
 - The change is saved.
- **H.** Press the \square key and hold it down for at least one second to return to the initial setting level.
- I. Press the \Box key and hold it down for at least one second to return to the operation level.

















5-25 Changing the Move-to-**Protect-Level Time**

time

Price(PRLT)This parameter allows you to change the move-to-protect-level time.ParameterParameterSet valueDescriptionPriceG-190 to 19 sec: Move-to-protect-level timeIf you press the
$$\Box + \Box$$
 keys and hold them down for at least five seconds (a prescribed time), the product enters the protect level. This prescribed time is called the move-to-protect-level time.Depending on the setting of the parameter, the product moves from the operation level to the protect levels as follows.



Procedure

- TIPS
- A move-to-protect-level time setting of "0" is assumed to be a setting of "1".
- Α. When the product is at the operation level, press the \square key and hold it down for at least three seconds to enter the initial setting level.
 - "5" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the initial setting level.
- B. Enter password "-0169" in parameter "Robu" to enter the advanced-function setting level. For details on how to move to the advanced-function setting level, refer to "5-2 Moving among Levels".
 - "F" will appear on the level indicator, indicating the product has entered the advanced-function setting level.
- **C.** Press the 🔄 key several times until parameter "P-LE" appears on the main indicator.
- **D.** Press the \searrow key to display the set value of the parameter on the main indicator.
 - The current set value of the move-to-protectlevel time will appear on the main indicator.

E. Press the \gg key again.

• The set value will start blinking, indicating the product is in the change state.













CHAPTER 6

FUNCTION DESCRIPTION

This chapter describes available functions of the product including measurement and average processing.

6-1	Measurement (K3MA-J)	6-2
	Voltage/Current Input/Scaling/Zero-limit/Forced-zero	
6-2	Measurement (K3MA-L)	6-5
	Temperature Input/Temperature Input Correction	
6-3	Measurement (K3MA-F)	6-6
	Pulse Input/Scaling/Auto-zero/Start-up Compensation Timer	
6-4	Average Processing	6-10
6-5	Comparative Output	6-11
6-6	Hysteresis	6-12
6-7	Display Color Change	6-13

6-1 Measurement (K3MA-J)

Voltage/Current Input

K3MA-J operates as a Process meter.

Measurements are made as follows.



- Input signals are sampled in synchronization with internal timings generated at intervals of 250 ms.
- The input signal is scaled and the process value is updated according to the scaling result. The updated process value is displayed on the main indicator.
- Comparative output is provided based on the process value.
- The process value and comparative output are updated per sampling.

Scaling

Scaling is to convert sampled input values to process values in sequence using a predetermined scaling formula.



Scaling allows conversion of input values to process values in easy-to-understand notation.

The scaling formula for voltage and current input is as follows.

$$dsp = \frac{DSP2 - DSP1}{INP2 - INP1}inp + \frac{INP1 \cdot DSP2 - INP2 \cdot DSP1}{INP2 - INP1}$$

Where;

INP1:	Input value corresponding to process value DSP1
DSP1:	Process value corresponding to input value INP1
INP2:	Input value corresponding to process value DSP2
DSP2:	Process value corresponding to input value INP2
inp:	Input value sampled

dsp: Process value corresponding to inp

Enter INP1, DSP1, INP2 and DSP2 to specify the scaling factor.

This way of specifying the scaling factor permits flexible scaling; inverse scaling where the process value decreases with the increasing input value is also possible.



* For details on how to specify the scaling factor, refer to "5-12 Specifying the Scaling Factor (K3MA-J)".

Zero-limit

The zero-limit is a function to display all the readouts lower than a predetermined value as zero.

This is useful when you want to display a minus numerical value as zero or display a value in the vicinity of the minimum of input range as zero.

Digits of 00 to 99 can be set.



Forced-zero

This feature shifts a process value to zero forcedly, and can be used to evaluate and display the deviation of a process value from a reference value.

The forced-zero function can be activated by using R key on the front panel when a current value is displayed on the main indicator.

The following illustrates the forced-zero and forced-zero cancel operation.



- When the key is pressed, the current process value is shifted to zero forcedly.
- Thereafter, measurements are made relative to the zero point.
- When the key is pressed while the forced-zero function has been activated, the current process value is further shifted to zero.
- When the key is pressed and held down for at least one second, the forcedzero operation is canceled.

Because the forced-zero and forced-zero cancel operation using the R key is stored in the internal nonvolatile storage of the product, the forced-zero state is alive even if the power turned off and on again.

6-2 Measurement (K3MA-L)

Temperature Input

K3MA-L operates as a Temperature meter.

Measurements are made as follows.



- Input signals are sampled in synchronization with internal timings generated at intervals of 500 ms.
- The input signal is scaled according to the sensor type and converted into temperature, and the process value is updated. The updated process value is displayed on the main indicator.
- Comparative output is provided based on the process value.
- The process value and comparative output are updated per sampling.

Temperature Input Correction

The input temperature is corrected by the quantity of the set value of "temperature input correction value" at all points in the whole sensor range.

If the correction value is 1.2 °C, the current value of 200 °C before correction will be processed as 201.2 °C after correction.



Measurement (K3MA-F) 6-3

Pulse Input

K3MA-F operates as a Frequency/Rate meter. Measurements are made as follows.



- When the input pulse frequency is 4 Hz or more, it is measured in synchronization with internal timings generated at intervals of 250 ms.
- The input pulse frequency is scaled and the process value is updated according to the scaling result.
- Comparative output is provided based on the process value.
- The process value and comparative output are updated at intervals of 250 ms.
- When the input pulse frequency is less than 4 Hz, it is measured with pulse input timings.
- Therefore, the intervals at which the process value and comparative output are updated lengthen in accordance with the decreasing input pulse frequency.

Minimum Pulse Width For pulse input, devices of low-speed contact output type or high-speed transistor output type can be connected to the terminal depending on parameter setting.

> When using a device of low-speed contact output type, set the input pulse frequency to "30 Hz". To remove chattering noise when the input pulse frequency is "30 Hz", both ON and OFF pulses must have at least 15 ms in width.

> When using a device of high-speed transistor output type, set the input pulse frequency to "5 kHz". In this case, both ON and OFF pulses must have at least 90 µs in width.



Scaling

Scaling is to convert sampled input values to process values in sequence using a predetermined scaling formula.



Scaling allows conversion of input values to process values in easy-to-understand notation.

The scaling formula for pulse input is as follows.



Where;

INP:	Input pulse frequency (Hz) corresponding to process value DSP
DSP:	Process value corresponding to input pulse frequency INP
inp:	Input pulse frequency (Hz)
dsp:	Process value corresponding to inp

Enter INP and DSP to specify the scaling factor.



Conversion of the input pulse frequency to the rotational speed involves the following scaling formula.



NOTE Unit conversion (r/s): (r/min)+60



Where:

P:

Number of pulses per rotation inp: Input pulse frequency (Hz) dsp: Rotational speed (r/min)

Conversion of the input pulse frequency to the circumferential speed involves the following scaling formula.



R = Rotor diameter

Unit conversion (m/s): (m/min)+60 (mm/s): (m/min)×1000÷60

Auto-zero

<i>dsp</i> (m/min)=	$\pi \cdot R \cdot \frac{60}{P}$ inp

Where:

where,	
π:	Circular constant
P:	Number of pulses per rotation
R:	Diameter of rotor (m)
inp:	Input pulse frequency (Hz)
dsp:	Circumferential speed (m/min)

K3MA-F has an input pulse frequency range of 0.05 to 30 Hz or 0.05 to 5 kHz, and hence the maximum interval between pulses is 20 seconds.

This means that the product may provide a lower-limit signal action as late as a maximum of 20 seconds after receiving the last pulse, which results in a poor responsibility for the lower-limit action.



To eliminate such a situation, K3MA-F has an **auto-zero** function that shifts the input pulse frequency to zero forcedly when no pulse is received for a predetermined time.

This function improves the product responsibility for the lower-limit action.

The time between reception of the last impulse and zero-shifting of the input pulse frequency is called the auto-zero time. The auto-zero time can be specified using the "auto-zero time" parameter. Specify the auto-zero time somewhat longer than the expected longest interval between input pulses.

Start-up Compensation Timer

K3MA-F has a start-up **compensation timer** that prevents measurement for a predetermined time after power-on.

This function is useful in keeping the product in wait state until a rotor reaches the steady state speed when the product and the rotator have been powered on simultaneously.

The time between power-on of the product and the start of measurement can be specified using the "start-up compensation time" parameter.



6-4 Average Processing

This function averages a specified number of measurements.

It is useful for preventing readout from fluctuating due to unstable input such as spike noise.



The average processing of the K3MA provides a simple average (an arithmetic mean). The number of measurements for averaging that can be specified is as follows.

- No average processing (the number of measurements for averaging: 1)
- 2
- 4
- . 8

The *number* of measurements for averaging is the number of times the process value is updated as described in "Measurement".

The following shows the relationship between the number of measurements for averaging and the interval at which the process value and comparative output are updated.

	Update interval			
Number of measurements	K3MA-J	K3MA-L	K3MA-F	
for averaging			Input pulse 4 Hz and more	Input pulse Less than 4 Hz
No average processing	250 ms	500 ms	250 ms	Every input pulse
2	500 ms	1 second	500 ms	Every 2 input pulses
4	1 second	2 seconds	1 second	Every 4 input pulses
8	2 seconds	4 seconds	2 seconds	Every 8 input pulses



6-5 Comparative Output

Comparative outputs 1 and 2 can be produced as three types of signal actions: upperlimit signal action, lower-limit signal action, and outside-the-range signal action.

Upper-limit Action Comparative output turns on when the process value reaches the OUT set value.

Comparative output turns off when the process value decreases to (OUT set value hysteresis).

Lower-limit Action Comparative output turns on when the process value decreases to the OUT set value.

Comparative output turns off when the process value reaches (OUT set value + hysteresis).

Outside-the-range
ActionComparative output turns on
when the process value
reaches the OUT upper-limit
value or decreases to the OUT
lower-limit value.

Comparative output turns off when the process value falls inside the range of (OUT upper-limit value - hysteresis) to (OUT lower limit value + hysteresis).



FUNCTION DESCRIPTION

Combinations of comparative output 1 and 2 offer the possibility of producing a wide variety of actions including upper-limit + another upper-limit actions, lower-limit + another lower-limit actions, and two-level outside-the-range actions.

output



6-6 Hysteresis

In this manual, **hysteresis** refers to a range that is provided above or below an OUT set value to avoid comparative output from turning off unless the process value falls outside the range, once the comparative output has turned on at the OUT set value.

Specifying the hysteresis suppresses chattering of comparative output caused by fluctuations of the process value in the vicinity of OUT set value.



Comparative output ON/OFF conditions are as follows.

●Upper-limit action				
ON:	Process value	≥	OUT set value	
OFF:	Process value	\leq	OUT set value - Hysteresis	
●Lower-limit action				
ON:	Process value	\leq	OUT set value	
OFF:	Process value	≥	OUT set value + Hysteresis	

Hysteresis can be set to a desired value using parameter "hysteresis".

6-7 Display Color Change

The display color of the main indicator can be changed.

This feature can be used to vary the display color of the gang-mounted products depending on their importance or to greater prominence to indication on the main indicator of certain products in an emergency.



"Green to Red" color change

Four display color change options are available.

Green to red:	The display color of the main indicator is green when both of comparative outputs 1 and 2 are off, and changes to red when either of the comparative outputs turns on.	
Always green:	The display color is always green.	
Always red:	The display color is always red.	
Red to green:	The display color is red when both of comparative outputs 1 and 2 are off, and changes to green when either of comparative outputs turns on.	

CHAPTER 7

TROUBLESHOOTING GUIDE

This chapter describes malfunctions and troubles of the product, and how to deal with these problems.

7-1 Indication of Error

Level indicator	Main indicator	Error description	Remedy	
Off	E	Internal storage is out of order.	Repair of the product is necessary. Contact a branch office of the company.	
5	E	Nonvolatile storage is out of order.	Repair of the product is necessary. Contact a branch office of the company.	
		The current range of 4 to 20 mA is selected for K3MA-J in the factory. Therefore, when the product is powered on for the first time after installation, and if nothing is connected to the current input terminals, this state will occur because of the input of 0 mA.	At the initial setting level, specify an appropriate input type in accordance with the application.	
Off	5.E rr blinking	Input is abnormal.	(K3MA-J)Supply voltage/current inputs that fallwithin the measuring range.The measuring range of each input type isas follows. $0-20$ mA range: $-2-22$ mA $4-20$ mA range: $2-22$ mA $4-20$ mA range: $2-22$ mA $0-5$ V range: $-0.5-5.5$ V ± 5 V range: $-5.5-5.5$ V ± 10 V range: $-11-11$ VIf the product does not return to normal,repair of the product is necessary.Contact a branch office of the company.(K3MA-L)Check the incorrect wiring,disconnection, and short of the input, andinput type.If the product does not return to normal,repair of the product is necessary.Contact a branch office of the company.	
Off	999 <u>9</u> 9	The scaled process value is higher than 99999.	Supply input values that fall within allowable range. The scaling factor may be inappropriate.	
011	blinking	(For K3MA-L: 9999)	Review the scaling factor again at the initial setting level.	
	-19999	The scaled process value is less than -19999.	Supply input values that fall within allowable range.	
Off	blinking	(For K3MA-L: -1999)	The scaling factor may be inappropriate. At the initial setting level, review the scaling factor again.	

7-2 Troubleshooting Table

Symptom	Item to be checked	Remedy	Reference page
The forced-zero function is inoperative even though the key is pressed.	Check if the forced-zero lockout is active.	At the protect level, set the forced-zero lockout to "Enable".	5-12
The product does not enter the protect level even though the $\square + \boxdot$ keys are held down for five seconds.	Check the specified value of parameter "move-to-protect- level time".	The time required for moving to the protect level can be changed by this parameter. Set it to an appropriate value.	5-35
Readouts vary greatly or decreases with increasing rota- tional speed.	Check if the set value of parameter "input-pulse frequency" is "30 Hz"?	When the input pulse is higher than 30 Hz, set the set value of this parameter to "5 kHz".	5-16
(K3MA-F)	Check if the pulse frequency of input pulse is higher than 5 kHz.	Return the input pulse frequency to within measuring range. Note that K3MA does not generate an "outside-of- measuring-range" error even if the input pulse frequency exceeds 5 kHz.	
Readouts vary or are incorrect even when the rotational speed is low. (K3MA-F)	Check if the pulse width of ON/OFF signals meets the specification.	The product can not recognize input pulses correctly unless their width is as specified, even if the rotational speed is low. Supply the product with pulses that have a width specified in this manual.	6-6
The main indicator reads "0" when the rotational speed is low. (K3MA-F)	Check if the set value of parameter "auto-zero time" is larger than the maximum time interval of input pulses.	Set this parameter to a larger value than the maximum time interval of input pulses. Otherwise, auto-zero functions to shift the readout to zero.	5-28 6-6
The product continues to read "00000" on the main indicator since powered on. (K3MA-F)	Check if the set value of parameter "startup compensation time" is too long.	Set the set value of this parameter to an appropriate value. In K3MA-J, the startup compensation time can be set to up to 99 seconds.	5-30 6-9
Comparative output does not turn off even when a process value goes back to normal.	Check if the set value of parameter "hysteresis" is too large.	Set this set value to an appropriate value.	5-27 6-12

APPENDIX

Specifications	
Parameter List	i

Specifications

Ratings

Supply voltage	100 to 240VAC(50/60Hz), 24VAC(50/60Hz)/DC
Operating voltage range	85% to 110% of the rated supply voltage
Power consumption	100 to 240VAC: 6 VA max. 24VAC/DC: 4.5 VA/W max. (at max. Load)
Insulation resistance	$20 \text{ M}\Omega$ min. (with 500 V megger) Between all the external terminals and the case Insulation provided between inputs, outputs, and power supply.
Dielectric withstand voltage	2000VAC 1min Between all the external terminals and the case Insulation provided between inputs, outputs, and power supply.
Noise immunity	$\pm 1,500$ V on AC power supply terminals in normal or common mode, ± 480 V on AC/DC power supply terminals in normal or common mode, $\pm 1 \mu$ s, or 100 ns for square-wave noise with 1 ns
Vibration resistance	Frequency: 10 to 55 Hz Acceleration: 50 m/s ² X,Y,Z direction 5 min×10 sweeps
Shock resistance	150 m/s ² (Relay contact: 100 m/s ²) 3 axes 6 directions \times 3 times
Input impedance (Typ)	Voltage range : 1 M Ω min. Current range : 45 Ω max.
Input absolute maximum rating	±30 mA (4 to 20 mA, 0 to 20 mA) ±13.5 V (1 to 5 V, 0 to 5 V, ±5 V) ±26 V (±10 V)
Ambient temperature	-10 to $+55^{\circ}$ C (with no condensation or icing)
Ambient humidity	25 to 85%
Storage temperature	-25 to 65°C (with no condensation or icing)
Altitude	2,000 m max.
Weight	Approximately 200g *[J/L] / 220g *[F] (main body)

*[J]:K3MA-J, [L]:K3MA-L, [F]:K3MA-F

Reley Contact Output

(A2 Type)

Item	Resistive load(cos =1) Inductive load(cos =0.4, L/F					
Rated load	250VAC 5A, 30VDC 5A	250VAC 1A, 30VDC 1A				
Rated carry current	5A max. (at	COM terminal)				
Max. contact voltage	250VAC, 150VDC					
Max. contact current	5A max. (at COM terminal)					
Max. switching capacity	1250VA, 150W 250VA, 30W					
Min. permissible load	5VDC, 10mA					
Mechanical life	5,000,000 times min. (at a switching frequency of 1,200 times/min)					
Electrical life (at an ambient temperature of 20°C)	100,000 times min. (at a rated load switching frequency of 10 times/min)					

(C Type)

Item	Resistive load(cos =1)	Inductive load(cos =0.4, L/R=7ms)			
Rated load	250VAC 5A, 30VDC 5A	250VAC 1.5A, 30VDC 1.5A			
Rated carry current	5A max. (at	COM terminal)			
Max. contact voltage	400VAC, 150VDC				
Max. contact current	5A max. (at COM terminal)				
Max. switching capacity	2000VA, 192W	375VA, 36W			
Min. permissible load	5VD	C, 10mA			
Mechanical life	20,000,000 times min. (at a switching frequency of 1,200 times/min)				
Electrical life (at an ambient temperature of 20°C)	100,000 times min. (at a rated load switching frequency of 10 times/min)				

Characteristics

A/D conversion method	Double integral method				
Sampling period	250 ms *[J], 500 ms *[L]				
Max. displayd digits	-19999 to 99999 *[J/F] / -1999 to 9999 *[L]				
Average processing	Simple average of None/2/4/8 me	easurements			
Comparative output	$1a \times 2 \ *[J/F] / 1c \ *[L]$ (Relay co	ontact output)			
Delay in comparative output	750ms max. *[J/F] / 1s max. *[L]			
	Display color change				
	Key protect				
Other functions	Startup compensation timer (Only	r K3MA)			
	Auto-zero (Only K3MA)				
	Switching of comparative outputs				
	Front side: NEMA4X(equivalent				
Enclosure ratings	Terminal area: IP00+Finger Protection(VDE106/part100) when the terminal cover is				
	mounted.				
Memory protection	EEPROM (Nonvolatile storage) Saving times: one hundred thousand times				
Ambient atmosphere	Installation categoryII, Degree of contamination : 2				
	(according to IEC61010-1)				
	UL3121,CSA C22.2 No.14				
		on degree 2, overvoltage category II"			
	EN61326+A1 Industrial use "Class A"				
	(EMI)				
	Emission Enclosure:	CISPR11 Group1 Class A:CISPR16-1/-2			
	Emission AC Mains:	CISPR11 Group1 Class A:CISPR16-1/-2			
	(EMS)				
Approved standards	Immunity ESD:	EN61000-4-2: 4-kV contact discharge			
Approved standards	Immunity-RF-interference:	8-kV air discharge EN61000-4-3: 10 V/m(amplitude modulated, 80MHz			
	Infinitumerence.	to 1GHz)			
	Immunity Burst:	EN61000-4-4: 2-kV power line			
		1-kV I/O signal-line			
	Immunity Surge:	EN61000-4-5: 1kV (L-N/AC Lines)			
		2kV(L-PE,N-PE/AC Lines)			
	Immunity Conducted Disturbance:	EN61000-4-6: 3 V(0.15 to 80 MHz)			
	Immunity Voltage interrupts:	EN61000-4-11:0.5Cycle,0°,180°,100%(rated voltage)			

*[J]:K3MA-J, [L]:K3MA-L, [F]:K3MA-F

Input Characteristics

K3MA-J

Input type	Setting range	Control range	Measuring accuracy
0-20	0 to 20mA	-2 to 22mA	
4-20	4 to 20mA	2 to 22mA	±0.1%FS±1digit max. at 23°C±3°C
0-5	0 to 5V	-0.5 to 5,5V	$\pm 0.1\%175\pm101$ git max. at 25 C±5 C
1-5	1 to 5V	0.5 to 5.5V	
5	±5V	±5.5V	±0.1%FS±1digit max. at 23°C±5°C
10	±10V	±11V	$\pm 0.17013\pm101$ git max. at 25 $\times\pm5$ \times

K3MA-L

Input type	•	Set value	Setting range	Control range	Indication accuracy
			-200 to 850°C -300 to 1500°F	-220 to 870°C -340 to 1540°F	
	Pt100	1	-199.9 to 500.0°C -199.9 to 900.0°F	-199.9 to 520.0°C -199.9 to 940.0°F	
Platinum resistance thermometer		2	0.0 to 100.0°C 0.0 to 210.0°F	-20.0 to 120.0°C -40.0 to 250.0°F	$\pm 0.5\%$ of indicated value or $\pm 1^{\rm o}\text{C},$ whichever is larger ± 1 digit max.
	JPt100	3	-199.9 to 500.0°C -199.9 to 900.0°F	-199.9 to 520.0°C -199.9 to 940.0°F	
	51 (100	4	0.0 to 100.0°C 0.0 to 210.0°F	-20.0 to 120.0°C -40.0 to 250.0°F	
	К	5	-200 to 1300°C -300 to 2300°F	-220 to 1320°C -340 to 2340°F	$\pm 0.5\%$ of indicated value or $\pm 1^{\circ}$ C, whichever is larger ± 1 digit max. (at a temperature of -100°C or less: $\pm 2^{\circ}$ C ± 1 digit max.)
		6	-20.0 to 500.0°C 0.0 to 900.0°F	-40.0 to 520.0°C -40.0 to 940.0°F	
	J	7	-100 to 850°C -100 to 1500°F	-120 to 870°C -140 to 1540°F	$\pm 0.5\%$ of indicated value or $\pm 1^{\circ}C,$ whichever is larger $\pm 1 digit$ max.
		8	-20.0 to 400.0°C 0.0 to 750.0°F	-40.0 to 420.0°C -40.0 to 790.0°F	
	Т	9	-200 to 400°C -300 to 700°F	-220 to 420°C -340 to 740°F	$\pm 0.5\%$ of indicated value or $\pm 1^{\circ}$ C, whichever is larger ± 1 digit max.
	1	10	-199.9 to 400.0°C -199.9 to 700.0°F	-199.9 to 420.0°C -199.9 to 740.0°F	(at a temperature of -100°C or less: ±2°C±1digit max.)
	Е	11	0 to 600°C 0 to 1100°F	-20 to 620°C -40 to 1140°F	$\pm 0.5\%$ of indicated value or $\pm 1^{\circ}C,$ whichever is larger $\pm 1 digit max.$
Thermocouple	L	12	-100 to 850°C -100 to 1500°F	-120 to 870°C -140 to 1540°F	
	U	13	-200 to 400°C -300 to 700°F	-220 to 420°C -340 to 740°F	±2°C±1digit max.
		14	-199.9 to 400.0°C -199.9 to 700.0°F	-199.9 to 420.0°C -199.9 to 740.0°F	
	Ν	15	-200 to 1300°C -300 to 2300°F	-220 to 1320°C -340 to 2340°F	±0.5% of indicated value or ±1°C, whichever is larger ±1digit max. (at a temperature of -100°C or less: ±2°C±1digit max.)
	R	16	0 to 1700°C 0 to 3000°F	-20 to 1720°C -40 to 3040°F	$\pm 0.5\%$ of indicated value or $\pm 1^{\circ}$ C, whichever is larger ± 1 digit max.
	S	17	0 to 1700°C 0 to 3000°F	-20 to 1720°C -40 to 3040°F	(at a temperature of 200°C or less: ±3°C±1digit max.)
	В	18	100 to 1800°C 300 to 3200°F	0 to 1820°C 0 to 3240°F	±0.5% of indicated value or ±1°C, whichever is larger ±1digit max. (at a temperature of 400°C or less is unrestricted.)

K3MA-F

Pulse frequency	Setting range	Measuring accuracy
30	0.05 to 30Hz (Minimum pulse width: 15ms)	±0.1%FS±1digit max. at 23°C±5°C
5k	0.05 to 5kHz (Minimum pulse width: 90µs)	$\pm 0.17013 \pm 100$ git max. at 25 C ± 5 C

Parameter List

Use this list to note your set values.

K3MA-J

Level	Parameter	Indication	Setting range	Default	Unit	Set value
	Operation/adjustment lockouts	68PE	5-0	۵		
Level Protect Operation Initial setting Advanced- function setting	Setting level lockout	26 <i>P</i> E	5-0	1		
FIOLECI	Operation/adjustment lockouts SRPE D-2 D					
	Forced-zero lockout		aff/an			
	OUT1 Value	ällt i	-19999-99999	99999		
	OUT1 upper-limit value	айн И	-19999-99999	99999		
Operation	OUT1 lower-limit value	aue IL		-19999		
Operation	OUT2 value	alle 2				
	OUT2 upper-limit value	6UE 2H	-19999-999999	99999		
	OUT2 lower-limit value	aUE 21.				
	Input type	in-t		4-20		
	Scaling input value 1	EnP. I	-19999-99999	4.00		
	Scaling display value 1	dSP. I	-19999-99999	400		
	Scaling input value 2	InP.2	-19999-99999	20.00		
Operation Initial setting Advanced- function	Scaling display value 2	d5P.2	-19999-99999	2000		
	Decimal point position	dP	/م.مممه/مم.ممه	000.00		
	OUT1 type	allt I.t	HI/LO/HI-LO	HE		
	OUT2 type	aUE 2.E	HI/LO/HI-LO	Lõ		
		Rnou	-19999-99999	0		
	Parameter initialization	init	aff/an	٥FF		
		850	öff/2/4/8	öff	time	
	OUT1 hysteresis	XYS 1	0-9999	1		
Advanced-	OUT2 hysteresis	XY52	0-9999	1		
-	Zero-limit		öFF/ön	ōFF		
setting	Zero-limit value	LIN-P	0-99	0		
	Display color change	[ālār		Gra-r		
	Display auto-return time	rEE	0-99	10	S	
	Move-to-protect-level time	Prit	0- IS	5	S	

K3MA-L

Level	Parameter	Indication		Setting range	Default	Unit	Set value
	Operation/adjustment lockouts	ōRPĿ		0-2	۵		
Protect	Setting level lockout	26 <i>P</i> E		0-2	1		
	Setting change lockout	YEPE		off/on	6FF		
	OUT1 value	ällt I		-1999-9999	9999		
Operation	OUT1 upper-limit value	aue IX		-1999-9999	9999		
	OUT1 lower-limit value	ällt IL		-1999-9999	-1999		
Adjustment	Temperature input cor- rection value	ins		-1999-9999	۵		
			Resistance thermometer	1 : Pt100 1 : Pt100 2 : Pt100 3 : JPt100 4 : JPt100			
Initial setting	Input type	īn-t	Thermocouple	5: K 5: K 7: J 9: T 10: T 11: E 12: L 13: U 14: U 15: N 15: R 17: S 18: B	5		
	Temperature unit	d-U		[/F	5		
	OUT1 type	ällt I.t		HI/LA/HI-LA	HE		
	Move to advanced-func- tion setting level	Rñãu		-1999-9999	۵		
	Parameter initialization	init		ōFF/ān	6FF		
	No. of measurements for averaging	850		6FF/2/4/8	<u>ö</u> ff	time	
Advanced-	OUT1 hysteresis	XYS (0-9999	1		
function set- ting	Display color change	[ālār		űrn-r/űrn/rEd-ű/ rEd	Gra-r		
	Display auto-return time	rEb		0-99	10	S	
	Move-to-protect-level time	Prlt		0- IS	5	s	

Level	Parameter	Indication	Setting range	Default	Unit	Set value
	Operation/adjustment lockouts	68PE	5-0	0		
Protect	Setting level lockout	26 <i>P</i> E	5-0	1		
	Setting change lockout	YEPE	aff/an	-2 0 1 -2 1 1 -300 5FF 1 -39999 99999 1 -39999 99999 1 -39999 19999 1 -39999 19999 1 -39999 19999 1 -39999 19999 1 -39999 19999 1 -99999 19999 1 -99999 5000 1 -99999 5000 1 -99999 5000 1 -99999 5000 1 -99999 5000 1 -99999 5000 1 -99999 5000 1 -99999 0 1 -99999 0 1 -99999 0 1 -99999 0 1 -99999 0 1 -99999 1 1 -99999 1		
	OUT1 Value	aue I	-19999-99999	99999		
	OUT1 upper-limit value	aue IX	-19999-99999	99999		
Operation	OUT1 lower-limit value	alle IL	-19999-99999	-19999		
Operation	OUT2 value	alle 2	-19999-99999	-19999		
	OUT2 upper-limit value	6UE 2H	-19999-99999	<u>99999</u>		
	OUT2 lower-limit value	3UE 2L	-19999-99999	-19999		
	Pulse frequency	P-F-E	30/SY	S۲	Hz	
	Scaling input value	inp	0-99999	S000		
	Scaling display value	dSP	-19999-99999	S000		
Initial setting	Decimal point position	dP	0.0000/00.000/ 000.00/0000.0/ 00000	00000		
	OUT1 type	ällt I.t	Hĩ/Lă/Hĩ-Lă	HE		
	OUT2 type	allt 2.t	Hĩ/Lă/Hĩ-Lă	Lõ		
	Move to advanced-function set- ting level	Rhàu	19999-99999	0		
	Parameter initialization	init	åFF/ån	6FF		
	No. of measurements for averaging	850	öff/2/4/8	öff	time	
	OUT1 hysteresis	HYS I	0-9999	1		
Advanced-	OUT2 hysteresis	HYS2	0-9999	1		
function	Auto-zero time	RUE à E	0.0- 19.9	19.9	S	
setting	Startup compensation timer	S-bñr	0.0-99.9	0.0	s	
	Display color change	[ālār	Gratr/Gra/rEd-G/ rEd	Grn-r		
	Display auto-return time	r8£	0-99		s	
	Move-to-protect-level time	Prlt	0- IS	5	S	

K3MA-F

INDEX

A	
absolute maximum rating	2.6
adapter	
adjustment	
adjustment level	
advanced-function setting	
advanced-function setting level	
alphabets	
analog input	
auto-zero	
auto-zero time	5-28
average processing	6-10
•	

change state	5-6
comparative output1-3,	2-5,6-11
contact output	1-6
crimp contact type terminals	2-5
current leakage with transistor turned ON	2-6

С

D	
decimal point position	5-22
digital panel meter	
dimensions	
display auto-return time	5-34
display color	
display color change	6-13

	F	
forced-zero		
forced-zero lo	ockout	

Н	
hysteresis	2
hysteresis (width)	

I	
I/O circuit	. 1-5
I/O terminal connections	. 2-4
Indication of error	. 7-2

initial setting	4-1,5-2
initial setting level	5-3
initialize all parameters	5-25
input circuit diagrams	1-5
input range over	4-2
input type	5-14
installation	
installation procedure	
internal block diagram	1-6
internal nonvolatile storage	6-4

Κ

L	
	2
load	5
lower-limit signal action 3-3,3-5,3-9,3-11,6-11	L

Μ

main features	
measurement	6-2
min. load current	
model number legend	
monitor state	5-6
move-to-protect-level time	5-35

Ν
number of measurements for averaging5-26,6-10
numerics

0	
OFF leakage current	
OFF pulse width	6-6
ON pulse width	6-6
ON residual voltage	
operation	5-2
operation/adjustment lockouts	5-12
OUT1 lower-limit value	5-8
OUT1 upper-limit value	5-8

OUT1 value	5-8
OUT2 lower-limit value	5-8
OUT2 upper-limit value	5-8
OUT2 value	5-8
output circuit diagrams	1-6
outside-the-range signal action	. 3-7,6-11

Ρ

panel cutout dimensions	
parameter	5-5
password	5-4
power supply	
pressure sensor	
protect	
protect level	
proximity switch	
pulse frequency	
pulse input	

R

S

sampling	
scaling	1-2,6-2,6-7
scaling factor	
scaling formula	
scaling operation error	5-21

selecting a comparative output	5-24
set values	5-6
setting change lockout	5-12
setting level lockout	5-12
shift	
spike noise	6-10
start-up compensation time	5-30
start-up compensation timer	6-9
supply capacity	
suppresses chattering	6-12

Т

teaching function	5-18,5-20
terminal arrangement	
terminal connection	

U

V

viewing and changing the OUT set values...... 5-7

W	
waterproof	22
watertight packing	2-3

OMRON ELECTRONICS LLC

1 Commerce Drive Schaumburg, IL 60173 USA 800.55.OMRON (66766)

OMRON CANADA, INC.

885 Milner Avenue Scarborough, Ontario M1B 5V8 416.286.6465

OMRON ON-LINE

Global - http://www.omron.com USA - http://www.omron.com/oei Canada - http://www.omron.com/oci

For Distributor Loc	ations or Product In	formation, Call:
800.55.OMF	RON or 847	7.843.7900
UNITED STATES	S REGIONAL SAL	ES OFFICES
Northeast	Boston, MA	508.303.8880
East	Philadelphia, PA	610.524.1897
Southeast	Atlanta, GA	770.798.6780
Central	Cincinnati, OH	5 3.469.6766
Midwest	Chicago, IL	847.843.7910
Southwest	Dallas,TX	972.871.2166
West	Los Angeles, CA	714.621.3455
CANADA REGIONAL SALES OFFICES		
Ontario	Toronto	416.286.6465
	Kitchener Kingston	519.896.1144 613.376.3968
Quebec	Montreal Ste-Foy	514.636.6676 418.864.7378
British Columbia	Vancouver	604.522.8855
Alberta	Edmonton Calgary	403.440.0818 403.257.3095
BRAZIL SALES	OFFICE	
Sao Paulo	55.11.5564.6488	
ARGENTINA SA	LES OFFICE	
Buenos Aires	54.114.787.1129	
MEXICO/LATIN	I AMERICA SAL	ES OFFICE
Florida	954.227.2121	